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Message from the member of the Executiue Council for 

Economic Deuelopment. Enuironment. Rgriculture and 

Rural Deuelopment 

The continued development of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng into 
premier tourism destinations in line with the Gauteng 
Tourism Development Strategy (GTDS) is evidence of the 
commitment and diligence of the Cradle of Humankind 
Site team, the Dinokeng team and the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority team, and bears testimony to the seamless 
cooperation that has been cemented within the tourism 
landscape of the province. 

Historically, the Cradle of Humankind Site and the 
Dinokeng Project have given high priority to upgrading 
bulk infrastructure and creating quality employment 
opportunities in their respective portions of Gauteng. 
This report provides strong evidence of sustained service 
delivery, performance against targets and the tackling of 
important challenges during the 2014/15 financial year. 

The challenge faced by Gauteng in continuing to entice a 
growing percentage of local and international visitors to 
the Cradle of Humankind Site and Dinokeng as preferred 
destinations has been met successfully, despite challenging 
economic conditions in the broader economy. Tourism 
has become a fiercely competitive business. Yet again, 
competitive marketing, management and appropriate 
development of tourism destinations reveal themselves as 
critical success factors. 

The Cradle of Humankind Site continues to grow as an 
iconic tourism destination. The rate of scientific discoveries 
has accelerated, with South Africa's currently unique 
species, Australopithecus sediba, continuing to command 
world attention. The progressive structure around the site 
of this find at Malapa has received accolades as it combines 
a conservation shelter, a museum, a visitor centre and an 
integral part of an active working site. 

The Interpretation Centre Complex, comprising Maropeng 
and Sterkfontein, continues to provide a focal point of this 
unique, near-pristine destination. 

The distinctive nature of the Dinokeng tourism experience 
is centred on the viability of the Dinokeng Game Reserve. 
The past year has seen this Big Five reserve in Gauteng 
becoming a popular drawcard, in part at least because of its 

accessibility from the province's major urban centres. 

The enthusiastic team and management of the Cradle of 
Humankind Site, the Dinokeng Project and the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority continue to lead and integrate these 
projects in an effective and dynamic fashion. 

On behalf of the Gauteng provincial government, I would 
like to convey my sincere gratitude to all the stakeholders 
for their hard work and commitment to the development of 
these outstanding destinations, which continue to occupy 
dominant places in the tourism landscape and grow towards 
becoming examples of real and lasting excellence. 

Mr Lebogang Maile 
Member of the Executive Council: Economic Development, 
Environment, Agriculture and Rural Development 
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Introduction by the CEO and accounting officer 

The period under review saw the streamlining of the 
tourism landscape in line with the GTDS. The Cradle of 
Humankind Site, the Dinokeng Project and the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority have all undergone intense scrutiny 
and a new structure has emerged that will separate the 
demand side of tourism under GTA from the supply side of 
tourism, which will fall under the Gauteng Department of 
Economic Development. 

It has always been the objective of these tourism projects to 
produce tangible benefits to as many people as possible. 

With this in mind, it is the duty of all organs of state to strive 
continuously to create a better life for all. This can only be 
achieved through the implementation of good governance as 
set out in the Bathe Pele code of conduct, which is essential 
for all tiers of government to be effective. 

State employees should have a shared vision, discipline, 
commitment, a cooperative and collaborative spirit, loyalty, 
perseverance and ethical conduct. The failure to encourage 
and enhance these qualities in state employees is a betrayal 
of the trust of the common people. While I am confident that 
my staff members demonstrate these attributes in good 
measure, we should never rest on our laurels, but should 
always strive to elevate our standard of excellence and high 
quality of service. 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Management 
Authority has built a solid basis for the conservation of 
universal history, which is encapsulated in remarkable 
hominin fossils that have been unearthed on our very 
doorstep. Among the eminent visitors to the site was FW 
de Klerk, former president and a Nobel Peace Laureate for 
having helped pave the way to a democratic South Africa. 

The Secretary General of the UNWTO, Taleb Rifai, also 
visited the site and was deeply moved by holding the type 
specimen of Australopithecus sediba, which is popularly 
known as Karabo. A group of over 30 German science 
journalists were also deeply impressed by what the site has 
to offer us in terms of knowledge of our ancestors. 

Dinokeng is a remarkable spatial destination which, 
besides its dams and diamonds, has sunshine and an ever
expanding cluster of elite bushveld destinations almost 
within sight of central Tshwane. The Dinokeng Big Five 
Game Reserve is now completely stocked with these iconic 
species, and is the only free-ranging Big Five game reserve 
in the province. Self-drive routes were opened in the year 
under review and promise to deliver to the public a product 

for which there is huge demand. 

During the 2014/15 financial year, the tourism industry 
has shown resilience, and even growth and prosperity, at 
a time when other industries have declined, some of them 
alarmingly. We know that we have created destinations 
through which tourism can continue to flourish. This is 
most meaningful when it creates work opportunities and 
precipitates skills transfer to people working in tourism and 
the cluster of industries that operate in tourism. 

This annual report demonstrates accountability and wise 
spending, especially as the budgets of all departments have 
now been rationalised in line with the current and projected 
fiscus. The province continues to be marketed as a pivotal 
and often underrated portion of the country where we say, 
"It starts here!" 

Staff of the Cradle of Humankind Site and Dinokeng Project 
have contributed admirably to the reputation of Gauteng 
as a tourism destination, and a leader in tourism project 
management and marketing. I believe this annual report 
will serve as a glowing testimonial to those who serve these 
remarkable projects and give them their just significance 
and well-deserved applause. 

Ms Dawn Robertson 
CEO: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
and Dinokeng Project 

I 
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Senior management 
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2.1 Mandate of the programme 

The Cradle of Humankind Site (GOH WHS) and Dinokeng 

Project are geo-spatial development initiatives of the 

Gauteng government, aimed at developing premier 

tourist destinations in economically depressed regions 

in the north-east and north-west parts of the province. 

The Gauteng government has been appointed as the 

Management Authority (MA) for the GOH WHS in terms 

of the World Heritage Convention Act, 1999 (Act 49 

of 19991. 

The World Heritage Convention Act obliges the Cradle of 

Humankind Site MA to achieve the objectives of the Act in 

order to: 

a) Provide for:

i. The cultural and environmental protection and

sustainable development of, and related activities

within, the GOH WHS; and

ii. Giving effect to the values of the Convention Act

b) Make the Convention part of South African domestic law

The GOH WHS and Dinokeng trading entities are to create a framework to ensure that the Convention

established as trading entities within the Department of and the operational guidelines are effectively

Economic Development, Environment, Agriculture and implemented in the Republic of South Africa, subject to

Rural Development with a single accounting officer, the 

CEO, appointed in terms of section 36(3J(b) of the Public 

Finance Management Act (PFMA). Act 1 of 1999. The CEO 

reports to the member of the Executive Committee for 

Economic Development. 

The strategic priorities of the GOH WHS and Dinokeng 

Project are aligned with the strategic priorities of the 

Gauteng government's five-year programme. During 

the latter part of the 2014/15 financial year, the Cradle 

of Humankind Site and Dinokeng Project reprioritised 

and realigned their plans to the Department of Economic 

Development's mandate and vision for the fifth term of 

democratic governance to act decisively, boldly and to 

radically transform, industrialise and modernise Gauteng's 

economy through a provincial 10-pillar programme. 

However, the projects operate in a complex and 

challenging multidisciplinary environment, requiring 

11111 IIUlll 11111� 11111111111111111111 111 IIIIIIIII 

the Constitution and the provision of the Act

cl Promote, manage, oversee, market and facilitate 

tourism-related activities and development in 

connection with sites in accordance with applicable law, 

the Convention and the operational guidelines in such a 

way that cultural and ecological integrity is maintained 

d) Ensure that everything done in terms of this Act

conforms with the obligations of the RSA in terms of the

Convention and the operational guidelines

e) Ensure the identification and transmission to future

generations of the cultural and natural heritage

of the RSA

f) Ensure that effective and active measures are taken

for the protection, conservation, presentation and

interpretation of the cultural and natural heritage

of the RSA

g) Encourage investment and innovation in connection

with sites

h) Encourage job creation in connection with sites

11 m�mm� m� ijmmrn�m�m m r111r11r11 11r 
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j) Promote empowerment and

advancement of historically

disadvantaged persons in projects

related to sites

The promulgation of the COH WHS permits 

the Management Authority to enforce all 

regulations for the proper administration 

of special nature reserves, national parks 

and sites promulgated in terms of the 

National Environmental Management: 

Protected Areas Act for the COH WHS area. 

The promulgation of the site allows the COH 

WHS MA to fulfil its mandate of protection, 

conservation and preservation of the site. 

The Gauteng Department of Agriculture, 

Conservation and Environment [GDACE) was 

previously the accountable authority for the 

two projects, and continues to play a key role 

in the authorisation of environmental impact 

assessments for new development projects. 

In addition, GDACE provides corporate 

support services to the two projects in terms 

of a service-level agreement. 

The Gauteng Department of Sports, Arts, 

Culture and Recreation, the Provincial 

Heritage Authority, the South African 

Heritage Resources Authority and the 

National Heritage Council [NHC) similarly 

play a key role with regard to heritage and 

cultural resources management. 

2.2 Constitutional and legal framework 

The responsibilities of the COH WHS and Dinokeng comply with the following relevant national legislation within which the 

government operates: 

NUMBER 

Act 43 of 1983 I Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 

Environment Conservation Act, 1989 

� 
Act 73 of 1989 

Extension of Security of Tenure Act, 1997 Act 62 of 1997 

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 Act 107 of 1998, as amended 

National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act, 2004 Act 1 O of 2004 

National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003 Act 57 of 2003, as amended 

National Water Act, 1998 Act 36 of 1998 

Restitution of Land Rights Act, 1994 Act 22 of 1994 

Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations Regulations 1182 and 1183, 1997 
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2.:3 Good gouernance 

The responsibilities of the projects are also carried out in partnership with relevant statutory bodies and also comply with 

the legislative provisions of the following Acts: 

NUMBER 

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 Act 75 of 1997 

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 Act 53 of 2003 

Electronic Communications Security !PtyJ Ltd Act, 2002 Act 68 of 2002 

I Act 55 of 1998 

- 1Act 66 of 1995 

Employment Equity Act, 1998 

Labour Relations Act, 1995 

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 Act 5 of 2000 

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 Act 2 of 2000 

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 Act 3 Of 2000 

Promotion of Equality and Elimination of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 Act 4 of 2000 

Protection of Information Act, 1982 Act 84 of 1982 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 Act 1 of 1999 
-

Public Service Act, 1994 Act 103 of 1994 and Amendment Act of 1999 
-

Skills Development Act, 1998 Act 97 of 1998 

Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 Act 13 of 2005 
--��-

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 Act 108 of 1996 

2.� Strengthening accountabilit�

The Cradle of Humankind Site (COH WHSJ and Dinokeng 

are multidisciplinary in nature and their success requires 

active involvement of a multitude of stakeholders within and 

outside of government. 

The Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural 

Development has continued to play a key role in the 

authorisation of EIAs for new development projects. 

The Provincial Heritage Resource Authority, South African 

Heritage Resource Agency and the National Heritage 

Council have similarly played a key role with regard to 

heritage and cultural resources management in the 

COH WHS. 

A cooperative governance and stakeholder engagement 

framework has continued to be used as a tool to 

communicate the focus of the projects in terms of 

public participation during the current phase of project 

implementation, as well as a mechanism to strengthen 

accountability. The review of the framework provides 

a mechanism by which the projects receive critical 

feedback from stakeholders, enabling such feedback to be 

incorporated into, and thus influence, the manner in which 

delivery is undertaken. 

It represents an attempt by the COH WHS and Dinokeng 

to maximise partnerships to ensure that resources are 

effectively pooled for review delivery. The framework 

provides for engagement that is planned, purposeful and 

underpinned by the principles of Batho Pele. Elements 

of the existing cooperative governance and stakeholder 

engagement framework for the reporting period are set 

out below. 

I 
I 
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2.4.1 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: NATIONAL DEPARTMENTS 

Table 1 below sets out the scope of engagement with national departments: 

DEPARTMENT 

Department of Arts and Culture 

Department of Defence 

Department of Environmental Affairs 

Department of Tourism 

Department of Science and Technology 

Department of Public Works 

National Treasury 

Department of Rural Development and Land 
Reform and the Gauteng North-West Land Claims 
Commission 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Participation in the South African World Heritage Convention Committee 
Alignment of plans and budgets for the interpretation and preservation of 
heritage and culture 
Support for relationship with SAHRA 

Specific interaction regarding the participation of the department in the 
Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) with specific reference to the Ditholo 
Military Nature Reserve together with the DGR 

Best-practice environmental and conservation management 
Promulgation of the DGR as a Protected Natural Environment 

Alignment of plans and budgets for tourism investment and marketing 
Support for relationship with South African Tourism and the Tourism 
Grading Council of South Africa 
Facilitating access to poverty-alleviation funding 

Alignment of plans and budgets for scientific and research endeavours 
Support for relationship with National Research Foundation 

Support of palaeontological research in the COH WHS 
Roll-out of the palaeontology and archaeology strategy 
Specific interaction with regard to the identification and incorporation of 
surplus state land in the DGR and in the Roodeplaat and Cullinan tourism 
hubs in the Dinokeng area 

Specific interaction with regard to public-private partnership being 
developed for the Roodeplaat tourism hub. 

Specific interaction with regard to the identification and incorporation of 
surplus state land in the DGR and in the Roodeplaat and Cullinan tourism 
hubs in the Dinokeng area 

• Specific interaction to address settlement of land claims in the _J 
Dinokeng area 

2.4.2 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: NATIONAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 

Table 2 below sets out the scope of engagement with national government agencies: 

GOVERNMENT AGENCY 

South African Heritage 
Resources Agency 

South African Tourism 

Tourism Grading Council of 
South Africa 

Fair Trade Tourism South Africa 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

• 

• 

I : 

Support for regulatory compliance of the development of Cullinan in Dinokeng 

Support for international and domestic tourism destination marketing 

Implementation of a special project for the promotion of tourism grading 
Support for accreditation of assessors 

• Cooperation and promotion of responsible tourism

I 
--I 
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2.4.3 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT 

DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES 

Table 3 indicates the scope of interaction with provincial departments and government agencies within the 

Gauteng government: 

DEPARTMENT 

Department of Economic 
Development IDEDJ 

Department of Agriculture 
and Rural Development 

Department of Community 
Safety 

Department of Education 

Department of Local 
Government and Housing 

Department of Roads and 
Transport IGDRTJ 

Gauteng Enterprise 
Propeller 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 

Gauteng Development 
Aoencv 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

r : 

Alignment of strategic and business plans and budget with OED and its agencies 
Direct reporting line as a trading entity of the department 
Implementation of departmental plans and priorities as per the Gauteng Employment Growth and 
Development Strategy 

Specialist conservation advice in relation to the DGR 
Alignment of programme budgets for environmental and conservation management, including EIA 
authorisations and natural resource management projects 

Bilateral interaction to address general community safety; specialist input on safety and security for 
the tourism sector; and traffic law enforcement and road safety initiatives on tourism routes 

Relocation of schools in the DGR area 

Management of state land within the DGR 
Support for coordination with local government in Dinokeng and the COH WHS 
Bilateral interaction to resolve municipal demarcations of the COH WHS area 

Issue-based interaction with GORT as planning and implementing agent for roads network and 
signage budgeted by the Dinokeng Project 
Planning and implementing agent for roads network and signage budgeted by the COH WHS 

Coordination through OED inter-agency forum 
Support for SMME development 

Tourism planning and research cooperation 
Joint initiatives for international and domestic tourism destination marketing 

Coordination through OED inter-agency forum 
Support for investment promotion 
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2.4.4 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: NEIGHBOURING PROVINCES 

Neighbouring provinces also play an important role in the project implementation due to geospatial areas traversing more 

than one province. The scope of work in relation to interaction with neighbouring provinces is set out in Table 4: 

PROVINCE 

Limpopo 

North West 

Mpumalanga 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

• Issuing of permits for the introduction of game into parts of the DGR that traverse the Limpopo boundary
• Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and expansion 

• Alignment of plans and budget for tourism marketing 
• Land use planning
• Alignment of plans for serially listed fossil hominid sites 

• Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and expansion

The North West province is crucial in ensuring the sustainable management of the site in its entirety, as 10% of it falls 

within that province. Collaboration with the province is on the management agenda of the serially listed Taung Child 

Skull Site, as well as implementation measures for effective land use planning and control. 

The Limpopo province also has a serially listed site at Makapan Valley Site. 

The Mpumalanga and Limpopo provinces are critical for ensuring the full development of the Dinokeng Game Reserve, 

as it is envisaged to expand into neighbouring portions of the two provinces. Successful partnerships with Limpopo 

and Mpumalanga necessitate an alignment of economic and tourism development plans of neighbouring provinces and 

local authorities. 

2.4.5 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Collaborative relations with municipalities remain one of the important interactions for the sustainable development of 

COH WHS and Dinokeng. The COH WHS is Largely located in the West Rand District Municipality and Moga le City Local 

Municipality. Ten percent of the site falls within the Bojanala Platinum District Municipality in the North West province. 

Dinokeng falls within the boundaries of the Tshwane metro. This project area expands into parts of Limpopo and 

Mpumalanga. The scope of engagement with municipalities includes establishment of local economic development 

strategies, land use management, and housing infrastructure. 

Table 5 below sets out engagement with local municipalities: 

MUNICIPALITY 

City of Tshwane 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

• Alignment of strategies and plans for the successful development of projects and for the local
economic development strategies of local government

2.4.6 COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE: OTHER STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS 

Table 6 outlines the scope of engagement with each stakeholder group: 



STAKEHOLDER SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

Landowners • 
• 

• 

Occupiers [people residing on land with the • 

implicit consent of the landowner] • 

Tourism business owners • 
• 

Investors, particularly tourism business investors • 
• 

• 

• 

• 

DGR landowners· association • 

DGR management association and DGR game • 

enterprises 

Fossil site landowners • 

Scientists • 

University of the Witwatersrand • 

• 

Land use and development authorisations 
Interested and affected parties in development plans 
Participation as landowners in the DGR 

Land use and development authorisations 
Interested and affected parties in development plans 

Cooperation on tourism research 
Joint marketing initiatives 

Tourism research 
Tourism development 
Tourism destination marketing 
Grading of tourism establishments 
Destination brand marketing 

Implementation of the expansion of the DGR 

Representation of the interests of the state as a landowner by the Dinokeng 
Trading Entity in the DGR MA 

Implementation of landowner agreements for the monitoring and evaluation 
of palaeontological digs at 13 listed fossil sites 

Specialist input and support for research and scientific endeavour specific to 
the COH WHS 

Management of the COH WHS public-private partnership concession contract 
for Maropeng and Sterkfontein Caves 
Collaboration in the announcement of scientific finds 

2.5 Monitoring and eualuation 

The COH WHS and Dinokeng operate in a matrix 

management environment. Projects in this environment cut 

across organisational boundaries and involve staff required 

to report to their own line manager as well as to individual 

project managers. 

NAME OF ENTITY MONITORED BY 

Table 7 below shows the monitoring mechanisms 

applicable to the MEC, CEO and chief directors, who are 

responsible for ensuring that the outcomes and outputs 

reflected in the strategic plan and the medium-term 

expenditure framework are achieved. 

MONITORING MECHANI SM 

Member of the Executive Council • Gauteng legislature premier • Strategic plans and quarterly budget reports 
• Executive council Auditor-General • Annual reports 

• Provincial EXCO meeting 
• Ministerial and MEC meetings
• Annual performance plan 

--

Chief executive officer • Gauteng legislature • Strategic plans and budget
• MEC • Monthly reports
• Auditor-General • Quarterly reports 
• Internal Audit Committee • Annual reports 

• Provincial EXCO meeting 
• Provincial head of department forum 
• Annual performance plan
• OED agencies· CEO forum 

Chief director: strategic planning • CEO • Strategic plans and budget

and support • Monthly reports
• Quarterly reports 
• Annual reports 

Chief director: Cradle of Humankind • CEO • Strategic plans and budget

Site and Dinokeng • Monthly reports 

I 
• Quarterly reports
• Annual report
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VISION 

Our vision is to establish project areas that are conserved and 

sustainably developed as premier tourism destinations, contributing 

to job creation and economic growth, and creating a better life for 

all who live and work in and around the area. We also aim to offer 

visitors diverse leisure and business tourism opportunities. 

As custodian of the site, the Management Authority is also 

accountable to South Africa and the world for the protection and 

preservation of the COH WHS. We discharge our responsibilities 

professionally and adhere to the obligations imposed by the World 

Heritage Convention Act with regard to site management. 

MISSION 

The mission of the projects is to invest in strategic economic 

infrastructure and encourage private-sector tourism activity; 

and to invest in visitor facilities, creating a network of attractions 

connected by scenic routes. We also aim to maximise broad-based 

black economic empowerment and the development of SMMEs, and 

to consult with and involve all interested and affected parties in the 

management and development of the project area. 

VALUES 

In dealing with the public, the COH WHS and Dinokeng programme always strive to put people first (according to the 

Bathe Pele principles) through consultation with and the involvement of interested and affected parties. We always 

strive to act transparently, with integrity, respect, fairness and objectivity. The projects value teamwork, sound 

planning and enthusiasm. 

3.1 Broad strategic objectiues of the projects 

The strategy of the COH WHS and Dinokeng trading entities 

is to invest in infrastructure and tourism facilities in 

order to leverage private-sector investment in tourism 

business activities in the project areas. The rationale for 

the development of the two initiatives is to contribute to 

economic growth and job creation in the impoverished 

north-west and north-east regions of Gauteng. The key 

strategic objectives are: 

al To establish public-private partnership transactions 

for the development of significant tourism components 

in the network of tourism facilities connected by 

scenic routes 

b) To invest in strategic economic infrastructure

to stimulate private-sector investment in the

tourism sector

cl To integrate, coordinate and optimise the sustainable 

use of resources 

d) To progressively implement the master plan for the

development and management of the destination

international leisure and business tourism to 

the destination 

g) Advocacy, including targeted stakeholder

engagement, general stakeholder engagement and

cooperative governance

h) In the case of the COH WHS, to promote scientific

research and educational and learning opportunities,

and also to act as the Management Authority for

the UNESCO-declared site in accordance with

relevant legislation

The strategic priorities above are aligned with the strategic 

priorities of the Gauteng government. Gauteng has adopted 

the following strategic priorities: 

• Creation of decent work
• Long-term, sustainable growth of our

provincial economy
• Meeting the socio-economic development needs

of our people
f'..-o'!'t.tinn :,, mnro '3n11it�hlp c;.nriPtV 
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3.2 Organisational structure of the COH WHS and 

Dinokeng programme 

CEO 
(Acting from 

GTA structure) 

Chief director: Chief director: 
Chief financial officer Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

and Dinokeng 
Planning and support 

Programme manager· 
Dtnokeng 

Programme manager: 
Research and planning 

The COH WHS and Dinokeng Project are individually 

registered trading entities, with core functions being 

provided to the two projects. Transversal functions such as 

research and planning, fundraising, events and marketing, 

finance and administration are provided to the core 

functions. 

Due to the proposed merger of the COH WHS and Dinokeng 

Project with the Gauteng Tourism Authority, the CEO and 

the CFO of GTA provide dual functions to the three entities. 

The support personnel are from the following 

transversal programmes: 

3.2.1 FUNCTIONS OF THE STRUCTURE 

Programme manager: 
Fundraising, events. marketing and 

public relations 

• COH WHS programme

• Administration programme

• Fundraising, events and marketing programme

• Finance programme

• Research and planning programme

Reporting on the personnel of the above supporting 

programmes is the same in this report for both the COH 

WHS and the Dinokeng trading entities for the 2014/2015 

reporting period, because it is difficult to extrapolate exact 

information for each of these projects. 

The COH WHS and Dinokeng trading entities are established as trading entities within the Gauteng Department of Economic 

Development with a single accounting officer, the CEO, appointed in terms of section 36(3] (bi of the Public Finance 

Management Act. The CEO reports to the MEC for economic development. 

Due to the fact that high levels of expertise are required for various aspects of work, such work is contracted from 

specialists where this expertise is not required on a permanent basis. The CEO is supported by two chief directors, namely 

chief director: COH WHS and Dinokeng; and chief director: planning and support, as well as the following functional 

programmes: 

• Dinokeng programme

• Finance programme

• Research and planning programme

• Fundraising, events and marketing programme

•
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3.2.2 COH WHS PROGRAMME 

The COH WHS programme is responsible for 

infrastructure development, the development of a 

network of tourism interpretation and orientation 

centres as envisaged in the COH WHS master plan, as 

well as public participation and implementation of 

community projects. These components are divided into 

three sub-programmes: 

• Interpretation Centre Complex (management of

the official visitor centre, Maropeng, and the

Sterkfontein Caves)

3.2.3 DINOKENG PROGRAMME 

• The orientation centres sub-programme manages the

development of two proposed orientation centres in

the COH WHS as a PPP, as well as road infrastructure

and signage in the area

• The public participation and community benefits

sub-programme creates awareness about the

project; manages public participation activities; and

assists the community to participate in the economic

opportunities presented by the site through SMME

development, training and implementation of

community projects, among other initiatives

The Dinokeng programme is responsible for the management of strategic infrastructure developments and the network of 

tourism hubs as envisaged in the Dinokeng Trading Entity Master Plan. The programme is divided into three sub-programmes: 

• The public participation and community benefits sub-programme creates awareness of the project activities and enables

the community to participate in the economic opportunities presented by the project

• The Dinokeng Game Reserve sub-programme manages and oversees the development of the Big Five game reserve

in Dinokeng

• The Cullinan and Roodeplaat tourism hubs sub-programme manages and coordinates the establishment of these hubs

and the development of PPPs.
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3.2.4 RESEARCH AND PLANNING PROGRAMME 

The research and planning programme is responsible for 

monitoring and evaluating the impact of the development 

of the destination. Additionally, the Management Authority 

function as indicated in the World Heritage Convention Act 

resides in this unit. 

The component is divided into three sub-programmes. 

• The programme monitoring and evaluation sub

programme monitors the implementation of the

strategic objectives of the organisation as envisaged

in the master and strategic plans and reports on the

outputs achieved by the organisation

• The tourism and investment monitoring and evaluation

sub-programme conducts strategic research that

seeks to inform the marketing, investment and brand 

management strategy for the organisation and also to 

inform decisions for further tourism development in 

the area 

• The integrated environmental conservation

management sub-programme develops environmental

systems and manages environmental and conservation

issues in the COH WHS area. The unit is also

responsible for land use management, and oversees

all environmental management matters, which

includes the management of the registered fossil sites

within the site. This unit is largely responsible for the

Management Authority function, which is South Africa's

obligation to protect and preserve the COH WHS for

future generations

3.2.5 FUNDRAISING, EVENTS AND MARKETING PROGRAMME 

The fundraising, events and marketing programme 

is responsible for marketing, public relations, brand 

management, mobilisation of funds, management of the 

COH Trust, and organising and managing events and 

exhibitions for the COH WHS. The component is divided into 

three subcomponents: 

• Fundraising sub-programme for management of the

COH Trust and mobilising funds from international

and domestic donor organisations, corporates and

government, as well as soliciting brand partnerships

3.2.6 ADMINISTRATION PROGRAMME 

with corporates to increase the destinations· 

marketing mileage 

• The events sub-programme manages all VIP visits and

events, media events and targeted events to celebrate

milestone achievements. The sub-unit also manages

the destinations' representation at international and

local exhibitions

• The marketing and public relations sub-programme

manages the intellectual property (brand) and its users,

marketing and brand awareness, public relations

activities, collateral and website development

The administration programme mainly provides project administrative support to project managers and the 

organisation as a whole. This inter alia includes managing logistical arrangements for meetings, compiling and 

distribution of agendas, attending meetings and writing minutes, consolidating task lists, and filing of documentation 

in hard copy and electronically. 

3.2.7 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME 

The financial management programme is headed by the CFO. It ensures a sustained culture of financial management 

compliance in the organisation, and provides analysis and advice on procurement and the management of public 

finances, intergovernmental financial relations, and expenditure planning and priorities. The programme also manages 

the annual budget process and provides public finance management support. 
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3.3 Staff composition 

Staff composition by gender Staff composition by race 

• Indian

• Coloured

• Male

• White

• Female

• Black

3.� Human resource deuelopment

The organisation reinforces continual training to motivate 

and empower its staff. Continual trainjng encourages 

a workforce that is competent, consistent, competitive, 

effective and efficient, and provides employees with the 

necessary skills to perform their jobs efficiently. 

During the period under review, the annual training plan -

which addresses the individual training needs of staff linked 

3.5 Seruice prouiders 

to strategic objectives, career paths and performance 

development - was successfully implemented. A total of 42 

staff members attended training in the year under review. 

Due to the high number of vacant posts not filled because 

of the merger process, most staff members acted in more 

senior positions, which gave them an opportunity 

to develop. 

The approach of the projects is to procure services from service providers in the event that such expertise does not exist 

and/or where the service is not required on a permanent basis. To this end, a number of service providers were utilised 

during the reporting period. A summary of the key service providers is included in the financial section of this report. 





Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site I Tourism Projects Annual Report 2014/15 

Report on strategi.c objectiues and leuels of success 

The Cradle of Humankind was declared a World Heritage Site by the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
Organisation (UNESCO) on 2 December 1999. Since then this unique area not far from Johannesburg and spanning some 
50 OOO hectares has yielded some of the most incredible fossil finds of extinct fauna, particularly fossils of ancient human 
ancestors dating as far back as more than 3-million years before present. 

Together with the Maka pan Valley Site in Limpopo province and the Taung Child Site in North West province, the Cradle of 
Humankind constitutes what UNESCO has inscribed as the Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa. 

These are indeed sites of outstanding universal value because of the wealth of significant hominin fossils that have been 
unearthed, including Mrs Ples, Little Foot, the Taung Child skull and the recently described Australopithecus sediba, 

revealed to the world by Professor Lee Berger of the University of the Witwatersrand in April 2010. The Australopithecus

sediba fossils have been dated at an astoundingly precise 1.97-million years before present. It therefore offers an 
incredible window into our distant past and how we have evolved as a species. 

Ltl Introduction and oueruiew of the performance 

The sites of Malapa and the newly excavated Rising Star begins with the birth of our planet and continues through 
site, together with the world-famous Sterkfontein Caves, the history of humankind and into the future. 
have yielded the richest early human ancestor sites on the 
planet. Work on Australopithecus sediba alone has been Maropeng also has an original fossil display area 
featured in a large number of prestigious scientific works, where fossils are replenished regularly, education and 
as well as the popular media including National Geographic, conferencing facilities, a boutique hotel with incredible 
Scientific American, Time and many other media outlets. views, and a restaurant. The world-famous Sterkfontein 

The Malapa site still holds precious fossil material and 
excavations are likely to continue at this site for decades 
to come. New announcements around finds from the 
Rising Star site are imminent and are likely to focus world 
attention on the Cradle of Humankind site once again. 

This incredible site is managed on behalf of the minister 
of environmental affairs by the Cradle of Humankind 
Management Authority (MAJ. The primary goal of the 
Management Authority is to protect and preserve the site 
using existing laws and regulations, while at the same 
time offering interpretation for the site. The MA also 
helps to promote further scientific research, encourages 

Caves, owned by Wits University who are our partners in 
the management of the site, continue to attract many 
visitors, boast a scientific exhibition, and offer the 
opportunity for a guided tour. 

In the 15 years since its listing as a World Heritage Site, the 
Management Authority has progressively implemented a 
master plan for the site. There are many challenges with 
regard to development pressure and tourism development, 
among others, but the strides made thus far have ensured 
that the site is protected and is steadily growing and earning 
a reputation as an iconic site of global significance and a 
"must see" tourism destination in South Africa. 

community participation that will benefit local communities, There are a number of initiatives that are currently being 
and assists in stimulating tourism and ultimately local implemented by the MA in the Cradle of Humankind 
economic development. Site. The destination is also fast becoming increasingly 

popular with the cycling fraternity. Cycle lanes have been 
This is done through implementation of measures and constructed and the first phase of a mountain-bike trail 
projects that will ensure the conservation and protection of ( 18km) has been completed, with a further 13km of the loop 
the natural and cultural resources associated with the site, presently being planned - making this a non-motorised and 
while at the same time presenting tangible benefits and cycling destination of choice in Gauteng. 
interpretation for surrounding communities and the public 
at large. A fossil-casting project and a craft-beneficiation 

The official interpretation centre of the site is called 
Maropeng, which means "returning to the place from where 

- -1 --·-- _,,:_:_ll u ....... ,.....,,orl +n tho 

programme employing local community members have 
been successfully implemented in the project area, and the 
Management Authority will continue to sponsor schools 
from the surrounding areas for excursions to Maropeng and 
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as fossil studies and evolution form part of the curriculum 

from Grade 10 upwards. 

The main focus of the Management Authority for this 

acclaimed site in the future remains the protection and 

preservation of the elements that constitute what UNESCO 

terms the Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site. 

These are the existing proclaimed fossil sites as well as 

the biophysical environment on which the existing and yet 

undiscovered sites exist. 

This is done through implementation of measures and 

projects that will ensure the conservation and protection 

of the natural and cultural resources associated with the 

site, while at the same time ensuring tangible benefits 

and interpretation for surrounding communities and the 

public at large. The encouragement of tourism development 

as an economic driver enhances the Management 

Authority's mandate in terms of its heritage and 

conservation responsibility. 

The site cannot be managed in isolation from the 

stakeholders and communities directly impacted by it. A 

greater impetus has been given, and more needs to be done, 

to forge closer ties with all stakeholders in collectively 

managing and preserving this amazing South African 

treasure for current and future generations of the world. 

The Cradle of Humankind Site unit has a number of 

sub-units, as follows: 

al Interpretation Centre Complex (management of 

the official visitor centre, Maropeng, and 

Sterkfontein Caves) 

bi Public participation and community projects (includes 

the management of the Cradle Trust) 

cl Integrated conservation and environment management 

and land use management in terms of the relevant 

legislation, such as the National Environmental 

Protected Areas Act, the National Environmental 

Management Act, and the World Heritage Convention 

Act, among others 

d) Orientation centres/infrastructure management

(includes roads maintenance, signage, etcl.

The Interpretation Centre Complex sub-programme 

manages the visitor centres and museums in the 

COH WHS, namely Sterkfontein Caves and Maropeng. 

The public participation and community benefits 

sub-programme creates awareness about the project, 

manages public participation activities, and assists the 

community to participate in the economic opportunities 

presented by the site through SMME development, training 

and learnership programmes and the implementation of 

community projects. 

The fundraising element of the sub-unit is responsible 

for, in addition to fundraising activities, managing the 

established Cradle Trust, which oversees implementation 

and disbursement of funds for community projects and the 

promotion of further scientific research. 

The integrated environment and conservation sub

programme manages all work related to the conservation 

and environmental management of the site within the 

context of the OUV of the site, including management of 

the fossil sites and monitoring of the health of the 

groundwater in the site catchment area. This sub

programme is also responsible for the institutional 

arrangements and management of the COH WHS together 

with the National Department of Environmental Affairs, and 

the Management Authorities for the Taung Child Skull Site 

and the Makapan Valley Site. 

The integrated environment and conservation sub

programme also includes a land use management sub-unit 

that manages all development applications in the site in 

terms of the appropriate legislation. This sub-unit is also 

currently responsible for the implementation of a system 

of mountain-bike trails and cycle lanes in the site as part 

of a process of opening the site to cycling tourism. All 

institutional arrangements and engagements with UNESCO 

are managed in this sub-unit. 

The orientation centres/infrastructure unit is primarily 

responsible for all infrastructure- and signage-related 

matters in the site and works closely with a number of 

partners and stakeholders such as the Gauteng Department 

of Roads and Transport and landowners. 

�.2 Implementation of the master plan 

4.2.1 INTERPRETATION CENTRE COMPLEX (MAROPENG AND STERKFONTEIN 

VISITOR CENTRES) 

The provincial government has been continuing to fund the operational losses of Maropeng in the year under review. A 

request for proposals has been finalised in order to source a new private partner to manage the operations at Sterkfontein 

and Maropeng. The project is currently being managed jointly by Wits and the GPG. A support team is in place to assist the 
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The upgrades of the exhibition at Maropeng, as well as the installation of additional external infrastructure improvements, 

are currently under way. The completion of the construction and upgrades to the learner facility, Hominid House, were 

completed in the reporting period. 

4.2.2 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS 

As part of the mandate of the Management Authority 

in terms of including communities in the overall 

management of the site, 10 schools from the surrounding 

local community are sponsored to visit the centres of 

Maropeng and Sterkfontein annually. This is part of the 

broader outreach programme and the visitor centres act 

as a valuable resource for teachers and learners alike as 

the subject of evolution is part of the national curriculum. 

This project has been ongoing for a number of years. 

A set of public meetings was held in November 2014 in 

the project area. These were held at different geographic 

locations within the site to be able to reach as many of 

the affected stakeholders as possible. 

An arts and crafts community-beneficiation project 

was established in 2012 involving local community 

members. The project involved training 31 crafters in 

the development, production and marketing of craft 

with themes related to the project area. The second 

Open public meetings are held annually to inform phase of the project entailed mentorship and training 

stakeholders in the site about progress with projects and programmes for the established five primary and one 
• 1 - 1"-L -..1 -------4!,, __ 
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were assisted in setting up a stall at the Maropeng 

visitor centre. 

Further mentoring and training programmes are planned in 

the future for these cooperatives, while partnerships for the 

extension of the project are being explored with a number 

of different stakeholders. In the reporting period, fruitful 

partnerships were established with the Department of Rural 

Development, which provided equipment to the primary 

cooperatives, as well as with the Department of Trade 

and Industry, which provided valuable support in terms of 

training for the cooperatives. 

In addition to the arts and craft initiative, a collaborative 

project with Wits University, employing local community 

members as fossil casters, was also established in the 

reporting period. This fossil-casting facility is functional and 

operates from the Sterkfontein Caves Site. 

This project has recruited local community members to 

be trained in fossil casting and has created a number of 

employment opportunities, while ensuring that scientifically 

important high-quality casts are available to the scientific 

community as well as to the general public. This is one 

of the flagship projects of the partnership between the 

Management Authority and Wits University. The Marapo 

project is currently in the process of being registered as 

a cooperative. 

The Cradle Trust, while remaining dormant due to no 

funds being generated from the PPP agreement in terms 

of the concession contract, continues to be managed at an 

administrative level. The trust disbursed funding to two 

scientific research projects to the value of R100 OOO during 

the reporting period. It is envisaged that the trust will 

grow from strength to strength and will eventually focus 

on funding further scientific research in the site while at 

the same time rolling out meaningful community projects 

aligned to the mandate of the Management Authority in 

managing the site. 

In the reporting period there has been finalisation of the 

process for the review of the original master plan for the 

site and the development of an inclusive economic strategy 

for the future management of the site. This is being done 

with Wits University researchers as part of the partnership 

with the university. The idea is to create a platform 

for elevating the Cradle of Humankind Site to achieve 

greater impacts for the surrounding communities and all 

stakeholders while at the same time profiling the site as a 

site of significant palaeoanthropological research for the 

scientific world. 

�.3 Heritage and enuironmental management 

4.3.1 INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL AND CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT 

This sub-programme is responsible for the physical 

conservation of both natural and cultural resources that 

reside within the proclaimed site. Because the fossils have 

been preserved as a result of natural processes and are the 

raison d'etre for the listing of the site on the World Heritage 

List, the conservation and protection of the geology, 

and more specifically the dolomitic environment (Karst 

environment] and associated grasslands, is as important as 

the management of the fossil sites themselves. 

The management and protection of the fossil sites are 

inextricably linked to the health and management of the 

biophysical environment. This is done in consultation with 

the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEAi. which is the 

state party to the World Heritage Convention. To ensure that 

the site is managed in terms of the prescriptions of UNESCO 
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and the World Heritage Convention Act, measures have been 

taken to have the site properly proclaimed, and a proper 

boundary and buffer demarcated in consultation 

with the DEA. 

Management activities in the reporting period include the 

continued implementation of a land use management plan to 

control undesirable development that may have a negative 

impact on the site and which could threaten its status as 

a site. This unit also ensures that each of the nationally 

registered fossil sites are managed and excavated in terms 

of best-practice guidelines. Fossil sites are inspected 

twice a year by the Management Authority and SAHRA and 

recommendations made on the management of each of the 

fossil sites. 

A collaborative partnership with Wits University in the 

reporting period has finalised the protection of the Malapa 

Site through the construction of a protective dome over the 

site that will allow continued excavations to proceed while at 

the same time accommodating low-impact tourism activities. 

This is a first of its kind in the GOH WHS. The partnership 

has also finalised arrangements for the rehabilitation of the 

Gladysvale Fossil Site through the conclusion of a landowner 

agreement between Wits and the Nash family. 

The newly excavated Rising Star Site is likely to make 

headline news when the finds are officially announced. 

Presently the papers for these are being reviewed 

and finalised. 

The sustainable management of the Highveld Grassland 

habitat is critical for the natural systems and processes to 

function normally, which in turn will protect the important 

fossils found throughout the site. The implementation 

of biodiversity management strategies thus becomes 

as important as protecting the site from inappropriate 

development. The formation of privately owned protected 

areas is becoming an important strategy to counter poor 

infrastructure development, unscrupulous development and 

urban creep. 

Water is an important driver of the dolomitic environment 

and the fossil-forming processes. Management of surface 

and groundwater in the site is crucial to protecting the 

sensitive Karst environment. It is through the implementation 

of a water-monitoring plan that the Management Authority is 

able to gauge the severity of the threat posed by acid mine

water drainage (AMD) and other water-polluting threats to 

the site. 

A detailed surface and groundwater study has been 

concluded to understand all sources of contamination. This 

study has revealed the hydro-vulnerability status of each of 

the fossil sites. A water-monitoring programme is in place 

with the Council for Scientific and Industrial Research, 

which provides two reports annually on the status of the 

groundwater in the GOH WHS. In the reporting period, the 

Management Authority completed and submitted a state-of

conservation report to the DEA on the status of the impact 

of AMD on the site. This report was submitted to the World 

Heritage Centre in Paris by the DEA. 

The Working on Fire programme is implemented in the 

project area by the DEA on behalf of the Management 

Authority. Twenty-five people are employed from the local 

community through this programme. They serve an important 

function in the maintenance of the site, not only through 

fire prevention and related activities, but also by assisting 

in maintaining various aspects of the fossil sites, as well as 

other maintenance initiatives throughout the site. 

The Management Authority is represented at DEA meetings 

by the director: Cradle of Humankind Site, who sits on South 

African World Heritage Convention Committee meetings 

as well as the Joint Management Committee for the Fossil 

Hominid Sites of South Africa. 

The Management Authority has also played a fundamental 

role in setting up a site managers· forum, which brings 

together site managers from the various sites in the country 

to discuss areas of mutual interest in the management of 

their respective sites. 
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4.3.2 LAND USE MANAGEMENT- NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT: 

PROTECTED AREAS ACT 

The key deliverable of this sub-unit is the overall within the road reserve of the provincial roads in the Cradle 

management of development applications in the site. This is of Humankind Site in the 2013/14 financial year, while the 

done in consultation with the DEA. finalisation around maintenance of this trail was undertaken 

in the reporting period. 

The most important achievement for this sub-unit in the 

reporting period was the finalisation of the construction of 

the first phase of the mountain-bike trail project. This is the 

first part of a broader strategy for the implementation of a 

system of mountain-bike trails in the site that lends support 

to the non-motorised initiatives of the Gauteng Department 

of Roads and Transport (GORT). 

The GORT reviewed the approach and recommendations by 

the project team and officially endorsed the approach and 

general design and best practice guidelines proposed by the 

feasibility study. 

As a result, the detailed design and construction of the first 

18km of dedicated mountain-bike trails was undertaken 

Infrastructure 

Planning and design of a further 13km mountain-bike trail 

section to complete the loop trail was undertaken during the 

2014/15 financial year. The construction of this trail section 

will complete phase one of the trail project and will result in 

a 31 km single-direction mountain-bike loop trail within the 

road reserve. The mountain-bike trail as well as the existing 

cycle lanes in the site are fast making this area the cycling 

destination of choice in Gauteng. 

The management of the issue surrounding Portion 7 in the 

project area is currently being addressed by all relevant 

stakeholders, including national and local government 

structures, in dealing with illegal occupation of land that 

falls within the demarcated boundary of the site. 

The main deliverable of this unit in the reporting period related to the management of infrastructure-related maintenance 

in the GOH WHS. A task team with the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport (GORT) was set up to address all 

infrastructure, maintenance, roads, signage and cycling issues in the GOH WHS. 

This, together with the traffic-calming measures project and additional directional signage procured for the site, has 

contributed to creating a greater sense of place in the site, which will also contribute to improved navigation in the project 

area for both residents ;:rnrl visitnrc: :,I il,o 
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The strengthening of the relationship with GORT is planned 

in the new reporting period to address the issue of road 

maintenance, signage and other matters related to the 

management of the road reserve in the site. The partnership 

with this department is critical in the management of the site 

into the future as the roads that dissect the COH WHS are 

provincial roads. 

�. 5 Stakeholder 

engagements 

The management of the site is done in partnership with 

key stakeholders ranging from fossil site landowners to 

tertiary institutions like the University of the Witwatersrand 

(Wits); different tiers of government (local, provincial and 

national]; adjacent provinces like Limpopo and the North 

West (serially listed with the Makapan Valley Site and 

the Taung Child Site respectively]; and a range of other 

important stakeholders and agencies. 

There has been significant national, international and local 

engagement in the reporting period, with strengthening 

of ties with a variety of these key stakeholders. The 

South African Heritage Resources Agency is another key 

stakeholder in the management of the site and in particular forum is also an important initiative and the Management 

the fossil sites. Authority has been instrumental in the setting up and the 

running of this forum. 

There is also a close working relationship between the 

Department of Environmental Affairs and the Management 

Authority. The Management Authority is also represented 

at South African World Heritage Committee meetings 

convened by DEA, as well as at the Joint Management 

Committee of the serially listed sites, i.e. the Fossil Hominid 

Sites of South Africa. Representation at the site managers' 

A close working relationship with all these stakeholders is 

critical to the overall management of the site. The approach 

of the Management Authority is to manage the site with 

all stakeholders and improve on the relationships already 

established with critical stakeholders, both within as well 

as outside of the physical environment of the site. 

�.6 Challenges and opportunities 

The incorporation of the Cradle of Humankind Site under the 

Department of Economic Development in the new reporting 

period is likely to bring about greater stability for the 

Management Authority to be able to implement its mandate. 

Another focal challenge facing the COH WHS is the 

management of the site in consultation and collaboration 

with all stakeholders of the Cradle community in line with 

UNESCO's Operational Guidelines for the Implementation 

of the World Heritage Convention. It is also important for 

the COH WHS programme to put in place regulations that 

will assist the Management Authority to better manage 

development-related activities within the site and to 

ensure that benefits flow to communities living in and 

The forging of stronger ties with the communities and 

stakeholders of the COH WHS therefore remains a crucial 

and ongoing challenge for the Management Authority in 

terms of managing the site. Much has been done to date in 

addressing this and it remains a work in progress for the 

Management Authority. The COH WHS is close to two major 

urban conurbations and urban encroachment is a real threat 

in terms of protection and preservation of the site for future 

generations. This is currently being managed in consultation 

with the relevant provincial and national authorities. 

The management of the groundwater in the COH WHS, which 

is a fundamental part of the Karst geology of the site, can 

be cited as another major challenge for the Management 
... ,, -.-!._,. TL- .&.L---'- ,_,........., Al.An nn fh o. fnc:.c: il c:.iti:s,c:. ic;. ( ;:}ra �Lv 
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restricted to those sites in the southern area, but mitigation 

measures to address AMO at the Management Authority 

level as well as at a national government level have 

resulted in drastic improvement in the quality of the water 

flowing through the system. This is closely and constantly 

monitored by the Management Authority. 

LL7 Tourism inuestment 

The GOH WHS is fast becoming recognised as one of the 

premier tourism destinations in South Africa, as well as a 

site that holds immense significance for the world as it talks 

directly to the story of our ancient human ancestors and 

remains one of the most prolific palaeoanthropological sites 

in the world. 

The phenomenal recent discoveries at the Malapa and Rising 

Star sites are set to change the face of palaeoanthropology, 

with major announcements expected in the new year of the 

finds at the Rising Star Site. 

There is a huge opportunity for the Management Authority 

to develop the site in line with UNESCO prescriptions and 

open up the site for tourism development that will not only 

profile the site and its richness, but will directly benefit 

communities living in and around the site, as well as profile 

the continent as the birthplace of humanity. 

The main focus for the Management Authority in the coming 

year is the protection and preservation of the elements that 

constitute the Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site 

- the existing fossil sites and the biophysical environment in

which the fossil sites exist.

A monitoring plan has been implemented by the 

Management Authority as per recommendations from the 

extensive groundwater study that was undertaken, which 

has been recognised by UNESCO and ICOMOS as best 

practice. The Management Authority works in consultation 

with the DEA on these and other matters. 

The opening of the first phase of the mountain-bike 

project will likely add to the already existing profile of 

the GOH WHS as a non-motorised and cycling destination 

of choice in Gauteng. The Management Authority will 

also continue to support the cooperatives that have been 

established as part of the craft-beneficiation project and 

will continue to sponsor school visits to the Maropeng and 

Sterkfontein visitor centres. The Management Authority will 

also look at expanding these existing projects into 

the future. 

A fossil-casting project has also been established at 

Sterkfontein employing local community members and it 

is envisaged that this will become a self-sustaining and 

developing project managed in collaboration with Wits. 

The GOH WHS Trust will also receive attention and will 

continue to support community projects and further 

scientific research. 

Finally, the substantial upgrades at Maropeng and 

Sterkfontein in terms of the exhibition and external 

environment will likely draw greater footfall not only to 

the visitor centres, but also to the greater catchment area 

of the site. The appointment of a private partner or a 

Another critical partner in the management of the site number of partners in the management of the Interpretation 

is the local municipality of Mogale City. There has been Centre Complex will improve the overall performance of 

collaboration with the municipality on various aspects of these centres. The research that will be undertaken with 

the management of the site, including collaboration on the Wits University in the new reporting period will map a 

arts and craft project, but closer working ties need to be process for the future management of this iconic site. 

strengthened going forward, particularly with regard to 

working closely with the municipality in terms of the roll-out The OUV of the site cannot be managed in isolation from 

of its Rural Precinct Plan. Both authorities need to work the stakeholders and communities directly affected by 

in tandem and in the best interests of the GOH WHS, the the site. Continued and greater impetus will be given to 

country and the world. forging even closer ties and building on the relationships 

The issue of AMO and monitoring of the quality of the 

groundwater and surface water is another high priority 

for the Management Authority, as is the meticulous 

management of development pressure in and around the 

GOH WHS. 

already established with all stakeholders, in particular 

with fossil site landowners and surrounding communities, 

working together with them in managing the site for the 

benefit of all. 
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�.8 Destination brand and marketing 

Arguably South Africa's leading site and experience, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site offers visitors from 

across the globe a unique experience centred around a common area of interest in that we all come from a single ancestral 

lineage. The management, marketing, promotion and garnering of broader stakeholder support for this brand are therefore 

critical, and the period of reporting therefore aimed to achieve some of these major wins as we strategically set out to 

create South Africa's and Africa's leading visitor destination. 

UNIT STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The objective of the marketing, advertising and public relations work of the COH WHS Management Authority is to: 

• Increase demand for the Cradle of Humankind visitor brand offering domestically and internationally through the

positioning of Africa, specifically South Africa, as the cradle of all humankind

• Drive visitor numbers to the destination from identified markets by developing innovative marketing and PR campaigns

that raise the profile and increase awareness of the destination

• Keep stakeholders informed about the development of the project

• Roll out a refreshed brand positioning

• Develop brand toolkits guiding the visual and inherent brand identity across all COH WHS brand contact points, ranging

from markets to level of operations such as branding, websites and social media

The above-mentioned objectives, which are strategic (long term), medium term and also short term, are achieved 

through a number of key functional areas of work. These include visual brand identity creation through brand manual 

(Cl) development and implementation; photography; design; collateral development; sub-brand development; 

campaign concept development and support; destination branding; and brand management, including ensuring 

consistent messaging. 

KEY MILESTONES AND ACTIVITIES IN THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW 

4.8.1 BRAND MANAGEMENT: BRAND STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT 

AND POSITIONING 

The COH WHS brand strategy, developed in 2010, was updated in 2014 as informed by new developments such as market 

trends, the adopted brand leadership renewed positioning report, and stakeholder input, for improved brand buy-in and 

future use. This updated brand strategy was presented to various stakeholders, such as the general managers' forum and 

potential local tourism association (L TAI members. 

4.8.2 LOCAL TOURISM ASSOCIATION 

The appointment of a private-sector provider for running the LTA was done with the appointment of Magaliesberg Maps 

through a closed bid process. The service provider has operated the Magalies Meander Tourism Association for many years 

and has built strong relationships with products owners in the area. In addition to the appointment, a fully functional board 

to manage the L TA operator and strategically guide this work towards membership coordination was also implemented. 

The launch of this non-profit entity is scheduled to take place in the 2015/16 financial year. 

4.8.3 SUMMER CAMPAIGN 

To gain a competitive advantage, the COH WHS presented to consumers the Sho't Left summer campaign through strategic 

marketing partnerships with Gauteng Tourism, as part of a coordinated campaign using innovative, emerging marketing 
• .1.-L - -'----":-"-··-:�,,,_" .. �,,.,+h. t:'."+r�+on,, 
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The campaign's critical success was the fact that the COH WHS partnered with Auto Reach's "Back-to-Reality Promobus 

Summer Magic" campaign. This was introduced in December 2014 and was designed to target consumers coming into 

Gauteng. The N3 filling stations at Bergview and Montrose proved ideal replacements for toll plazas, distributing to almost 

22% of the overall traffic reached. Over 85 OOO discount vouchers were distributed as part of the campaign. 

�.9 Euents 

4.9.1 HEADS OF STATE VISITS 

This area of work remains a challenge, as it involves a high-profile event and hosting of presidents, Nobel Prize winners or 

relevant government departments while ensuring protocols and security concerns are observed. There is a need for a site

orientation visit with the Department of International Relations and Cooperation in order to foster good working relations 

with this department. 

During the period under review the project proudly hosted former South African president Kgalema Motlanthe, as well as 

former president FW de Klerk, one of our Nobel Peace Prize Laureates, at Maropeng. The successful footprint-imprinting 

event attracted media and media coverage, further highlighting the global significance of this site, once again placing 

Gauteng on the global map 

I 

4.9.2 MALAPA LAUNCH EVENT 

On 4 September 2014, the Malapa Site was officially Launched and opened with key stakeholders such as Wits University 
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4.9.3 COH WHS CYCLING FESTIVAL 

The Cradle Cycling Festival was once again hosted at Maropeng with participation much higher than in the previous year. 

This event remains a signature event for the Cradle of Humankind, which continues to grow as one of South Africa's 

premier competitive and leisure cycling destinations. 

�.llSl Trade and consumer shows 

4.10.1 TOURISM INDABA 2014 

The Cradle of Humankind Site successfully exhibited at lndaba 2014, Africa's premier tourism trade show, with great 

success. lndaba is one of the largest tourism marketing events on the African calendar and one of the top three "must visit"' 

events of its kind on the global calendar. It showcases the wide variety of Southern Africa's best tourism products, and 

attracts international visitors and media from across the world. 

4.10.2 INTERNATIONAL TOURISM BOURSE (1TB) 

The purpose of the 1TB Berlin exhibition in Germany was to increase brand awareness among the international tourism 

trade sectors, forming part of the South African 2014 sell. The exhibition at 1TB, which was done under the auspices of 

South African Tourism and in collaboration with the Gauteng Tourism Authority, saw the profiling of the COH WHS as one of 

the top heritage sites in Gauteng. 

4.10.3 WORLD TRAVEL MARKET 

The Global Travel Trends Report released by Euromonitor 

International at the World Travel Market (WTMJ in London 

gives the tourism industry a glimpse into the future and 

reminds the industry of how important it is to stay relevant, 

innovative and fluid. One important key finding was the fact 

that cycling is overtaking golf as the strongest contender 

for the leisure time of middle-aged men. This finding offers 

an opportunity for the organisation to take advantage of 

this trend by marketing and putting together packages 

to promote and sell the COH WHS as a preferred cycling 

destination in Gauteng that offers some of the best 

cycling routes. 

4.10.4 SOWETO WINE & LIFESTYLE FESTIVAL 

The Soweto Wine & Lifestyle Festival celebrated 10 

years in 2014. This event took place at the University 

of Johannesburg, Soweto Campus. The festival, 

which started with a few hundred visitors tentatively 

trying wines, now attracts 10 OOO visitors from 

across South Africa and the world to the three-night 

event. With an economic impact in excess of 

R10 OOO OOO (ten million rand) in direct investment 

into Soweto, made up of hotel accommodation, 

travel hire, employment, food and sundries, the 

event has had a significant effect on the economic 

stimulation of Soweto. 

Gauteng Tourism sponsored a "Gauteng Taste of 

Africa" theatre experience, which featured top 

r<>c:t:,11r:,ntc:. includina oroducts from the COH WHS. 
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4.10.5 RAND SHOW 

The Rand Show provided the perfect marketing platform for COH WHS to increase brand awareness. Gauteng Tourism 
partnered with the Rand Show as one of the endorsing sponsors for the expo. 

4.10.6 GETAWAY SHOW 

The Getaway Show, an annual national consumer show for all outdoor product suppliers as well as travel- and tourism
related marketers, provided an excellent opportunity for cooperative marketing, as Gauteng Tourism allocates additional 
booth and outside space for products. The show offered the COH WHS an opportunity to market new and existing products 
and services directly to the relevant consumers. 

The Getaway Show assists in increasing visitor volumes, visitor spending and economic impact for destinations by 
developing awareness and preference. In 2014, the show had more than 260 exhibitors and welcomed 23 949 friends and 
family through the doors. 

4.10.7 OUTDOOR ECO ADVENTURE & TRAVEL EXPO 

The expo is particularly effective when Local operators attend and sell 
their products directly to the consumers. The expo is an annual national 
consumer show for all outdoor product suppliers as well as travel- and 
tourism-related marketers. 

The show attracted a high-quality audience of high-income earners who 
have a passion for adventure, travel and the outdoors. This audience falls 
within the COH WHS target tourism market, i.e. a large audience falling 
within the LSM (Living standards measure) bracket of 7 to 10. 

Outlook for 21Sll5/16 

The Management Authority will continue to focus on its 
primary mandate as per the World Heritage Convention 
Act and our commitment as a country to protect the OUV 
of the site; and to sustainably manage the environment 
in which these fossil sites occur, offer interpretation and 
presentation of the site, and involve Local communities in 
the management of the site, thus ensuring that benefits flow 
to communities living in close proximity to the site. 

Essentially this entails protecting the cultural heritage that 
must be transmitted to future generations. 

There will be an increased focus on the natural resource 
management of the site, including close monitoring of 
development management. The development of tourism and 
the encouragement of greater footfall to the visitor centres 
and the site will also receive focused attention. 

The management of the site as a serially listed site with 
its sister sites of Taung and Makapan Valley in North West 
province and Limpopo respectively, in consultation with the 
Department of Environmental Affairs, is currently under 
way with a Joint Management Committee in place and an 
integrated management plan being finalised. 

The Management Authority also continues to be represented 
at South African World Heritage Convention Committee 
meetings and has also played an instrumental role in the 
setting up of the first South African site managers' forum 
- a forum where site managers from all the sites in South
Africa meet and interact on areas of mutual interest in the
management of sites.

The management and maintenance of the mountain-bike 
trail in the project area as well as its increasingly popular 
reputation as the cycling destination of choice in Gauteng 

The announcement of new finds from the site, and in will ensure that the site continues to grow its tourism 
particular from the newly excavated Rising Star Site in the potential. The upgrades at the official visitor centre, 
coming months, is likely to focus world attention once again Maropeng, will ensure that visitors experience diversity 
on this site of global palaeoanthropological significance. whPn vic:itinn thP c:it<> :,nrl wil I pnc:11r-<> r-<>no:,t \ficibtinn 
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The finalisation of signage at the gateways in the COH WHS 

as well as new interpretative signage is planned for the new 

financial year with funding from the National Department 

of Tourism. 

The Management Authority will continue to manage the site 

in close consultation with all stakeholders. As a central 

focus of the management of the site, the Management 

Authority will ensure that steps are taken to initiate further 

research, education, training, awareness raising and 

capacity building around the site, as well as liaise with 

and be sensitive to the needs of communities living in or 

near sites. 

The Cradle of Humankind Site will continue to be managed in 

terms of the prescripts of the World Heritage Convention Act 

and the prescripts as laid down by UNESCO for the optimal 

management of sites for current and future generations. It 

is our country"s obligation to preserve, protect, present and 

interpret this iconic site for South Africa and the world. 
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

INTRODUCTION 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Cradle of

Humankind World Heritage Site trading entity set out

on pages 48 to 67, which comprise the statement of

financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of

financial performance, statement of changes in equity

and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as

well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation

and fair presentation of these financial statements

in accordance with the South African Standards

of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA

Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa (No 1

of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control as the

accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted

my audit in accordance with the International

Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that

I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend

on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the trading entity's preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall
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5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

audit opinion.

OPINION 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in

all material respects, the financial position of the Cradle

of Humankind World Heritage Site trading entity as at

31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash

flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA

Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

7. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa

(No 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued

in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report

findings on the reported performance information

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in

accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting

principles and whether the reported performance was

consistent with the planned strategic goals. I further

performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time-bound and relevant, as required

by the National Treasury's Framework for Managing 

Programme Performance Information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate

and complete.

12. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness

and reliability of the reported performance information

for the selected strategic goals.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 

against predetermined objectives for selected strategic 13_ I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the 
goals presented in the annual performance report, trading entity had complied with applicable legislation 
compliance with legislation and internal control. The regarding financial matters, financial management and 
objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings other related matters. I did not identify any instances of 
as described under each subheading but not to gather material non-compliance with specific matters in key 
evidence to express assurance on these matters.

Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion

on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance

information for the following selected strategic goals

presented in the annual performance report of the

trading entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

• Strategic goal 1: to facilitate and promote the

Gauteng city region as an investment trade and

tourism destination, on page 68
• Strategic goal 3: a management system that

ensures the conservation of the fossil sites within

the COH WHS, on page 68
• Strategic goal 4: the protection and conservation

of the outstanding universal value of the COH WHS,

on page 68

9. I evaluated the reported performance information

against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in 

terms of the PAA. 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

14. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of

the financial statements, the performance report

and compliance with legislation. I did not identify any

significant deficiencies in internal control.

Auditor-General 

Johannesburg 

31 July 2015 

A U DI TO R - GE NE R AL 

SOUT H AFRIC A 

Auditing to build public confidence 
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Statement of responsibilit!d 

The head of the trading entity is the chief executive officer, 

appointed in terms of section 36(3)[b] of the Public Finance 

Management Act, No 1 of 1999. 

The chief executive officer is responsible for the reparation, 

integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements 

and other financial information included in this report. In 

presenting the accompanying financial statements, South 

concern in the foreseeable future, based on forecasts and 

available cash resources. The financial statements support 

the viability of the trading entity. 

The financial statements are being audited by the Auditor

General, which was given unrestricted access to all financial 

records and related data. 

African Statements of General Accepted Accounting Practice The annual financial statements on pages 48 to 67 were 

have been followed; applicable accounting assumptions have approved by the chief executive officer on 31 July 2015 and 

been used, while prudent judgment and estimates within the are signed on their behalf by: 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, No 1 of 

1999, as amended have been made. 

The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing 

the financial statements. The chief executive officer has no 

reason to believe that the trading entity will not be a going 

Corporate gouernance report 

The Cradle of Humankind site trading entity is a Blue IQ 

project reporting to the MEC for Economic Development 

through the chief executive officer for the Cradle of 

Humankind Site and Dinokeng programmes. 

The chief executive officer is supported by the chief 

financial officer, programme manager and staff. 

The Department of Economic Development and the 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Acting chief executive officer 

Gauteng Tourism Authority provide corporate 

services in the areas of human resource management 

and information management, in terms of a service

level agreement. 

The Cradle of Humankind programme operates in a 

complex multidisciplinary environment, in collaboration 

and in partnership with various agencies and stakeholder 

trading entity. 

Audit Committee meetings took place regularly during the course of the financial year. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Internal audit tasks were performed by the Gauteng Shared Service Centre, based on the global risks identified by the 

senior management of the Cradle of Humankind Site project. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The senior management of the Cradle of Humankind Site programme has identified its global risks and mapped the 

necessary control measures for these risks. Residual values have been computed for the identified risks, on the basis of 

the probability of occurrence and the effectiveness of the control measures. 
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FRAUD PREVENTION 

Although fraud has not been identified by senior management as a global risk for the Cradle of Humankind Site due the 

strength of internal control processes, the Fraud Prevention Plan of the Department of Economic Development and the 

Gauteng Tourism Authority applies to the Cradle of Humankind site. 

Report of the Rudit Committee 

GAUTENG PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (GPG) 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - CLUSTER 01 

DINOKENG AND CRADLE OF HUMANKIND 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ATTENDANCE 

The Audit Committee consists of the external members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least two 

times per annum, as per the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 

Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), six meetings were held during the current year, i.e. four meetings to consider 

the quarterly performance reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the annual 

financial statements and the Auditor-General of South Africa's (AGSA) audit and management reports. 

NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 

NAME OF MEMBER 

Mr Vishnu Naicker 

Mr Mandla Ncube 

Ms Masaccha Mbonambi 

Mr Wayne Poggenpoel 

Ms Tshidi Molala 

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

6 

4 (appointed 1 October 2014) 

5 (appointed 1 October 2014) 

1 (transferred to Cluster 05) 

1 (transferred to Cluster 02) 

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit 

Committee: 

COMPULSORY ATTENDEES 

Ms Dawn Robertson (acting chief executive officer) 

Mr Yaseen Asmal !chief financial officer) 

Mr Matome Shotholo (acting chief risk officer) 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

5 

6 

6 

The Audit Committee noted that the accounting officer did not attend all the six scheduled Audit Committee meetings. 

However, letters of apology were tendered with duly authorised representatives attending on behalf of the CEO. The Audit 

Committee is therefore satisfied that the entities adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter in relation 

to ensuring that there is proper representation for the CEO. 
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The committee hereby also confirms that members of the Audit Committee met with senior management of the entity, 

internal audit and the Auditor-General, individually and collectively, to address risks and challenges facing the entity. A 

number of in-committee meetings were held to address control weaknesses and deviations within the entity. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

The Audit Committee confirms that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1 )(a) of the PFMA and 

Treasury Regulation 3.1.13, including the adoption of formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, and has 

regulated its activities in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 

TECHNOLOGY (ICT) GOVERNANCE 

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the entity has continued to improve during 

the year under review. Some deficiencies in the system of internal control and deviations were reported in the internal 

audit reports. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed progress with respect to ICT governance, in Line with the ICT Framework issued by 

the Department of Public Service and Administration. Although there was significant progress on the ICT internal control, 

the Audit Committee, together with management, has identified priority areas for improvement in implementation of the 

Disaster Recovery Plan and the Business Continuity Plan. This continues to be a high risk for the entities. The entities 

implemented recommendations made by the Audit Committee. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Audit Committee was satisfied that the internal audit plan fairly represented assurance required in managing the risk 

profile and control environment of the of the entities, and identified a number of risk-based, mandatory, performance, 

computer and follow-up audits to be performed during the year. 

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the executive management, the 

AGSA and the internal audit function, which has strengthened the corporate governance initiatives within the entities. 

The Audit Committee still remains concerned about the available capacity and resourcing within the internal audit function, 

and acknowledges the initiatives that are currently under way to strengthen the unit. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Progress on entity risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee is 

satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving attention, although there are areas that still require improvement. 

Management should take full responsibility for the entire enterprise risk management process and continue to support the 

chief risk officer to even further enhance the performance of the entity. 

FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS 

No major forensic investigations were performed at the entities during the period under review. 

THE QUALITY OF QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF THE PFMA AND THE DIVISION OF 

REVENUE ACT 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared 

and submitted by the accounting officer of the entities during the year under review and confirms that the reports were in 

compliance with the statutory reporting framework. 
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EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Audit Committee has: 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the AGSA and

the accounting officer

• Reviewed the audit report of the AGSA

• Reviewed the AGSA's management report and management's response thereto

• Reviewed the entity's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions

• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA's conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of the 

opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA. 

ONE-ON-ONE MEETING WITH THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

The Audit Committee has met with the accounting officer for the entities to address unresolved issues. 

ONE-ON-ONE MEETINGS WITH THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

The Audit Committee has met with the executive authority for the entities to apprise the MEC on the performance of the entities. 

AUDITOR-GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA 

The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

CONCLUSION 

The committee, together with management, remains committed to making exponential improvement in the coming financial 

year, which should form the basis for maintaining these two entities· unqualified audit opinion with no significant matter on 

matters of compliance and performance information. The committee wishes to express its appreciation to the MEC and all 

other stakeholders for their contributions during the year. 

Mr Vishnu Naicker 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

31 July 2015 
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Report of the accounting officer 

GENERAL REVIEW OF THE CRADLE OF HUMANKIND SITE PROJECT 

In February 2015 Economic Development MEC Mr Lebogang 

Maile announced through the Board and the chief executive 

officer a final decision on the outstanding merger of 

the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) and the Cradle 

of Humankind Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng Projects, 

following the earlier directive to merge the operations 

of these three entities. In essence, the resolution was to 

reconfigure the aforesaid entities so that the GTA focuses 

primarily and exclusively on destination promotion and 

marketing, in the quest to enhance its efficiencies. This 

decision effectively removes destination management 

responsibilities away from the GTA and locates them within 

the new Department of Economic Development (OED) 

Tourism Branch, of which the Cradle of Humankind site and 

Dinokeng form part. 

During the latter part of the 2014/15 financial year, the 

Cradle of Humankind Site reprioritised and realigned its 

plans to the DED"s mandate and vision for the fifth term 

of democratic governance to act decisively, boldly and 

unapologetically to radically transform, industrialise and 

modernise Gauteng's economy, through the following 

provincial 10-pillar programme: 

1. Radical economic transformation

2. Decisive spatial transformation

3. Accelerated social transformation

4. Transformation of the state and governance

5. Modernisation of the public service

6. Modernisation of the economy

urban development 

8. Modernisation of public transport infrastructure

9. Reindustrialisation of Gauteng province

10. Taking the lead in Africa's new industrial revolution

A cluster approach has been adopted towards the effective 

delivery of the TMR programme. The economic cluster 

led by OED is responsible for the five outputs that are in 

bold, while the social cluster drives outputs 3 (accelerated 

social transformation) and 7 (modernisation of human 

settlements and urban development), and the governance 

and planning cluster delivers on outputs 2 (decisive 

spatial transformation). 4 (transformation of the state and 

governance) and 5 (modernisation of the public service). 

The department seeks to achieve this through: 

• Providing an enabling policy and legislative

environment for equitable economic growth

and development
• Developing and implementing programmes and

projects that will:

o Revitalise Gauteng·s township economies

o Build new smart, green, knowledge-based

economies and industries

o Ensure decent employment and inclusion in key

economic sectors

o Facilitate radical economic transformation,

modernisation and reindustrialisation
.• : __ ... __ _ ... ___ -I. · · ·--�--
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youth and persons with disabilities in mainstream 

economic activities 

o Establish appropriate partnerships for delivery

o Ensure the OED effectively and efficiently delivers

on its mandate

Among the many challenges we plan to tackle head-on are: 

• The control and dominance that monopolies have

of our economy

• The persistently high Levels of income inequality

between managers and other staff and between white

headed households and black-headed households

• Economic development disparities that have resulted

from the previous apartheid government"s spatial and

racial policies and plans

• 

• 

• 

• 

The unacceptable Levels of unemployment and poverty

Removing the obstacles to investment and doing

business in Gauteng

Increasing the viability and success of SMMEs, township

entrepreneurs and cooperatives

Access to financial resources by informal traders;

and the need to develop and maintain strategic

infrastructure that can support and grow

economic activities

as during the builders· holidays which had been factored 

in the anticipated project delays. This forms part of the 

infrastructural development projects designed to enhance 

and diversify visitor experience while at the same time 

increasing footfall to Maropeng, the official visitor centre in 

the COH WHS. 

In terms of ensuring adherence to the World Heritage 

Convention Act (WHCA) and UNESCO prescripts for the 

management of sites, and to adopt better and sustainable 

environmental management practices in the Cradle of 

Humankind Site area, two groundwater monitoring reports 

were finalised by the CSIR which are a good indication of the 

status of the water quality in the area. The reports provide 

more information on the status of the water quality in the 

area, and areas where action should be focused in the 

future. In addition, two sets of fossil site inspections were 

concluded for the year, with the reports sent to the South 

African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRAI. The fossil site 

inspections are carried out with SAHRA officials as well. 

The trading entity continues to sustain direct employment 

opportunities with people employed as part of the Working 

on Fire project in the Cradle of Humankind Site area. The 

primary purpose of this team is to prevent fires that could 

threaten the environment in the site, but the team also adds 

As per MEC Maile: ""The programme of action for this term value to the site by addressing fossil site-specific problems 

of office is geared at altering the deep-seated structural and maintenance of gateways in the COH WHS, as well as 

challenges that continue to confront our province, especially maintenance of the cycle Lanes. 

in the economic arena. 

""The next five years will be defined by radical measures to 

encourage investment in economic and social infrastructure 

investment; support for new sectors of growth such as ICT 

and the green economy; the revitalisation of manufacturing 

and Localisation to spur industrialisation; transformation 

of the rural economic Landscape and integration of 

smallholder farmers into the food supply chain of key 

and high-value food commodities; and the deliberate 

empowerment of small business and cooperatives Located 

in our townships."" 

The programme has created employment opportunities 

for 25 beneficiaries for the year. In addition to these 

temporary jobs, 112 employment opportunities have 

been made possible at the visitor facilities of Maropeng 

and Sterkfontein in the COH WHS during the period 

under review. 

The arts and crafts cooperatives established in the COH 

WHS, continue to be mentored and supported. 

Ten underprivileged schools from around the Cradle of 

Humankind Site environs were sponsored, as planned, to 

The implementation of projects during the 2014/15 financial visit the Maropeng and Sterkfontein visitor centres. 

year must be viewed within the context of the developments 

outlined above. In terms of non-financial performance, 

the Cradle of Humankind site project achievement marked 

an improvement at 85. 7%, exceeding the previous year's 

84.2%. The unachieved target is only as such due to a delay 

in payments received from the project sponsor. 

Among the key successes for the period under review was 

the early completion of the Maropeng Hominid House, 

with the site having been handed over on 19 December 

2014. It must be noted that this project created a total 

of 109 jobs, consistent with the TMR principles. This 

target was exceeded by 30% due to the willingness of the 

contractor to work outside regular working hours, as well 

As indicated above, the overall performance percentage 

for the period under review was 85. 7% in terms of hard 

numbers, achieving six out of seven indicators. The only 

target confirmed as having not been achieved relates to 

the completion of the Maropeng Virtual Laboratory. The 

variance of 40% on the completion of the Maropeng Virtual 

Laboratory was due to delays experienced in dispensing 

third and fourth tranche payments by the project third-party 

project sponsor, which caused the construction project to 

stall. The funds were only transferred Late in the fourth 

quarter of the financial year. The project has resumed 

accordingly and completion is planned for the first quarter 

of the 2015/16 financial year. 
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BRIEF COMMENTARY ON THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The total funds available for use in the 2014/15 financial year amounted to R72.616-million, including approved voted funds 

of R62.616-million and grants received amounting to R1 a-million. The total funds received during the year amounted to 

R72.616-million. This included: 

• Voted funds of R62.616-million from the Gauteng Department of Economic Development

• Grants received of R10-million

• Interest income of R12 OOO

This resulted in a total expenditure at the end of the 2014/15 financial year of R58.165-million. As a result, 80% of the 

approved budget was spent during the 2014/15 financial year. A roll-over application to the amount of RS.528-million will 

be made to finance commitments. 

FUTURE PLANS AND ACTION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

The 2015/16 financial year will see the Cradle of Humankind Site and Dinokeng projects reconfigured under the 

department, and no longer under the Gauteng Tourism Authority. 

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There were no events of significance after the reporting date. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The contribution and perseverance of staff in the Cradle of Humankind Site in managing the site in terms of existing 

legislation and with all key stakeholders, is acknowledged. 

CONCLUSION 

The Cradle of Humankind Site will continue to be managed in terms of the prescripts of the World Heritage Convention 

Act and the prescripts as laid down by UNESCO for the optimal management of sites the world over for current and future 

generations. It is our country obligation to preserve, protect, present and interpret this iconic site for South Africa and 

the world. 

Ms D Robertson 

Acting chief executive officer 
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Statement of financial performance 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Note 31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

Revenue 72 628 44 120 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2 72 616 44 115 

Other income 3 12 5 

Total expenditure 4 [58 165) [66 392) 

Administrative expenses 

Compensation of employees 

Operating expenses 

Transfer/subsidies 

Surplus/I deficit) for the year 

Statement of financial position 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015 

. � '4 , " ) 

'ASSETS 

Note 

17 705) 

115 780) 

112 949) 

121 731) 

14 463 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

112 103) 

113 067) 

128 222) 

113 000) 

(22 272) 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

Non-current assets 2 022 2 862 

Property, plant and equipment 5 1 964 2 630 

Intangible assets 5.2 58 232 

Current assets 1 2 0 5 5 3 4 2 

Trade and other receivables 6 75 76 

Cash and cash equivalents 7 11 980 266 

Total assets 14 077 3 204 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equityand reserves 10 361 [4 102) 

Accumulated surplus 10 361 14 102) 

Current liabilities 8 3 7 1  6 7 3 O 6 

Trade and other payables 3 330 6 955 

Provisions 8.1 386 351 

Total equity and liabilities 14 077 3 204 
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Statement of changes in equity 
AS AT MARCH 2015 

Note 

16 

Acc um ulate d surpl us/(deficitl 

R'OOO 

Total 

R'OOO 

Opening balance as at 18 168 18 168 
1 April 2013 

Deficit for the year as previously reported 122 2701 122 2701 

Balance asat 31 Marc h2014 (4 102) (4 102) 

Surplus/ldeficitl for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 

Statement of cash flow 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Cash flow from operating activities Note 31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

14 463 

10 361 

14 463 

10 361 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

Cash receipts 72 62 8 37 880 

Transfers and subsidies 72 616 

[_ 
37 880 

Other receipts 12 

Cash payments ( 6 0 91 4 J I 4 9 4 11 J 

Compensation of employees 

Goods and services 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

Acquisition of intangible assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents 
and bank overdrafts 

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at 
beginning of the year 

Exchange gains/(lossesl on cash and bank overdrafts 

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of the year 

9 

5.1 

5.2 

115 1661 

145 7481 

11 714 

11 714 

266 

11 980 

112 9021 

136 5091 

(11 531) 

(6011 

1621 

(663) 

112 194) 

12 460 

266 
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Recounting policies for the �ear ended 31 March 2�15 

1 PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STAiEMENTS 

The Cradle of Humankind Site (the trading entity] is a trading entity of the Gauteng Department of Economic 

Development (OED] and was established with the approval of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPTJ and the Executive 

Committee of the Province. 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have 

been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

1.1 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP] and in accordance with the following 

policies, which have been applied consistently in all material 

aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where 

appropriate and meaningful, additional information has 

amended by the Public Finance Management Amendment 

Act, No 29 of 1999]. and the Treasury Regulations issued. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on 

an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 

historical cost convention, unless specified otherwise. 

been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial 

statements and to comply with the statutory requirements 

of the Public Finance Management Act, No 1 of 1999 (as 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have 

been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

The following GRAP standards have been applied in the annual financial statements: 

REFERENCE 

GRAP 1 

GRAP 2 

GRAP3 

GRAP4 

GRAP 5 

GRAP6 

GRAP 7 

GRAP8 

GRAP9 

GRAP10 

GRAP 11 

GRAP12 

GRAP13 

GRAP14 

GRAP16 

GRAP17 

GRAP19 

GRAP 21 

GRAP 23 

GRAP 24 

GRAP 25 

GRAP 26 

GRAP 31 

GRAP 100 

GRAP 104 

TOPIC 

Presentation of financial statements (as revised in 2010] 

Cash flow statements (as revised in 201 OJ 

Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors (as revised in 201 OJ 

The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (as revised in 201 OJ 

Borrowing costs 

Consolidated and separate financial statements 

Investments in associates 

Interests in joint ventures 

Revenue from exchange transactions (as revised in 201 OJ 

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies (as revised in 201 OJ 

Construction contracts (as revised in 201 OJ 

Inventories (as revised in 201 OJ 

Leases (as revised in 2010] 

Events after the reporting date (as revised in 201 OJ 

Investment property (as revised in 2010] 

Property, plant and equipment (as revised in 2010 ] 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (as revised in 2010] 

Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes and transfers] 

Presentation of budget information in financial statements 

Employee benefits 

Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Intangible assets 

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations las revised in 201 OJ 

Financial instruments 
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Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date: these 

accounting standards have been considered [where applicable) in the formulation of the accounting policies: 

GRAP 18 - Segment reporting: effective 

1 April 2015 

The standard requires the identification and aggregation 

of the operating segments of the entity into reportable 

segments. 

For each of the reportable segments identified details of 

the financial performance and financial position will be 

disclosed. 

At this stage entities are not required to implement it or 

even to formulate any accounting policy. 

GRAP 20 - Related parties - no 

effective date 

This standard provides the requirements for the disclosure 

of related parties and transactions and balances with 

related parties.The current accounting practice of the 

entity for related disclosures is aligned to this standard. 

Accordingly it is not expected that the adoption of this 

standard will have a material impact on the financial 

statements of the entity. 

GRAP 32 - Service concession 

arrangements: granter - no effective date 

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the accounting 

for service concession arrangements by the granter, a 

public entity. PPP agreements are arrangements that 

fall within the scope of this standard. This standard, 

once effective, will have an impact on the when PPP 

arrangements are entered into. 

GRAP 108 - Statutory receivables - no 

effective date 

Statutory receivables are receivables that: 

[al arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar 

means; and 

[b) require settlement by another entity in cash or another 

financial asset 

Accordingly, it is not expected that the adoption of this 

standard will have a material impact on the financial 

statements of the entity. The entity expects to adopt the 

standard for the first time once it becomes effective. 

GRAP 17 - Interpretation of the standard of 

GRAP on service concession arrangements 

where a granter controls a significant 

residual interest in an asset - no 

effective date 

This interpretation provides guidance to the grantor where 

it has entered into a service concession arrangement, but 

only controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement 

or otherwise, a significant residual interest in a service 

concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the 

arrangement does not constitute a lease. Accordingly it is 

not expected that the adoption of this standard will have a 

material impact on the financial statements of the entity. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

once it becomes effective. 

Directive 11 - Changes in measurement 

basis following the initial adoption of 

Standards of GRAP 

The objective of this directive is to permit any entity to 

change its measurement bases following the initial adoption 

of Standards of GRAP. The change is based on the principles 

in the Standard of GRAP on accounting policies, changes 

in accounting estimates and errors. This directive should 

therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP 

on accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 

errors. In applying paragraph 13b of the Standard of GRAP 

on accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 

errors, this directive allows the entity, that initially adopted 

the fair value model for investment property or revaluation 

model for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 

or heritage assets to change its accounting policy choice on 

the initial adoption of the Standard of GRAP. 

Subsequent to the adoption of this directive, an entity will 

be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods 

subject to it meeting the requirements in the Standard 

of GRAP on accounting policies, changes in accounting 

estimates and errors. 
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURE 

The trading entity has prepared its financial statements in compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP]. including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB], 

as from 1 April 2013. 

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African rand (ZAR]. which is also the functional currency of 

the entity. 

ROUNDING 

Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been rounded to the nearest one thousand (R'OOO]. 

1.2 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 

the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies, are translated at the closing rate at the 

reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

translation at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

The trading entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets are impaired. If an indication is identified, the trading entity estimates the 

recoverable amount or recoverable service amount of the asset in order to determine the amount of the impairment, if any. The 

recoverable amount of an asset, or cash-generating unit, is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 



Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site I Tourism Proiects Annual Report 2014/15 

1.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits 

or service potential associated with the item will flow to the trading entity, and the cost or fair value of the item can be 

measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, property, plant 

and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repairs 

and maintenance are charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in which they are 

incurred. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets to residual values over its expected useful lives using 

the straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

• Computer equipment 3-4 years
• Office equipment 5-10 years
• Office furniture 5-10years
• Leasehold improvements 10 years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if 

appropriate. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount or recoverable service 

amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount or recoverable service amount. 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds 

with the carrying amount, and are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

1.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. An asset is identifiable if it either: 

[al Is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the WHS and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether 

the WHS intends to do so; or 

[bi Arises from contractual or other legal rights, excluding those granted by statute, regardless of whether those rights 

are transferable or separable from the WHS or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised if: 

[a) It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

the WHS; and 

lb) The cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. 

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. Costs associated with the acquisition of computer software are recognised as intangible assets. 

Computer software is amortised over its expected useful lives using the straight-line basis. Estimated useful life: 

• Computer software 1-3 years

The remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if appropriate. An 

intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in 

the statement of financial performance. 

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 
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1.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The trading entity classifies its financial instruments 

based on the purpose for which the financial instruments 

were acquired. Management determines the classification 

of its financial instruments at initial recognition. The 

trading entity recognises a financial instrument in its 

statement of financial position when it becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 

instruments are measured initially at fair value, including 

transaction costs. Regular way purchases and sales of 

financial assets are accounted for at trade date. Financial 

assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 

accumulated impairment losses. 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

• Other rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired

• Other trading entity retains the right to receive cash

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, a 

gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 

financial instrument is derecognised, and through the 

amortisation process. 

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and 

the net amount presented in the statement of financial 

position when the trading entity currently has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and 

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The statement 

of financial position includes financial assets classified as 

financial assets at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative 

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included 

in current assets, except for maturities greater than 

12 months after the reporting date. These are classified 

flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to as non-current assets. The trading entity's financial 

pay them in full without delay to a third party under a assets at amortised cost comprise "'Receivables" and 

• 

"'pass through" arrangement

The trading entity has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset and either:

(al Has transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset; or

(b] Has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

RECEIVABLES 

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 

established when there is objective evidence that the 

trading entity will not be able to collect all amounts 

due according to the original terms of the receivables. 

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 

that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 

are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 

impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference 

between the asset's carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 

"Cash and cash equivalents" in the statement of financial 

position. The statement of financial position includes 

financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at 

amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are non-derivative 

financial Liabilities with fixed or determinable paymen·ts 

that are not quoted in an active market. The trading entity's 

financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise trade 

payables in the statement of financial position. 

original effective interest rate. The impairment is 

provided for by reducing the carrying amount of the 

asset directly and is recognised in the statement of 

financial performance. 

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in 

the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related 

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 

was recognised, subject to the restriction that the 

carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the 

impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying 

amount would have been had the impairment not been 

recognised. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 

written off are reversed directly and recognised in the 

statement of financial performance. 
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance and petty cash held. Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially 

at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest earned on the bank 

balance does not accrue to the trading entity but to the Revenue Fund of the Gauteng provincial government. 

TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables comprise accruals for services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Trade payables 

are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

1.6 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 

The accounting policy in terms of the compensation of employees is in line with the policy of the Gauteng Provincial 

Treasury, and is as follows: 

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The costs of short-term employee benefits are expensed in the statement of financial performance in the year in which they 

occur. Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present or constructive obligation are recognised and disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

Salaries and wages shown in the statement of financial performance comprise payments to employees [including leave 

entitlements, 13th cheque and performance bonuses). 

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Employer contributions are expensed in the statement of financial performance. No provision is made for retirement 

benefits in the financial statements of the trading entity, or in the financial statements of the parent department. Any 

potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Funds and not in the financial 

statements of the employer department. This policy is in line with the Gauteng Provincial Treasury's policy. 

TERMINATION BENEFITS 

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance. 

OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in the statement of 

financial performance. 

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Compensation paid to key management personnel is included in the disclosure for related parties. 
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1. 7 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

An exchange transaction is one in which the trading entity 

receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 

and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in 

the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other 

party in exchange. The trading entity recognises revenue 

when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it 

is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 

will flow to the entity. 

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis 

using the effective interest method. When a receivable is 

impaired, the trading entity reduces the carrying amount 

to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future 

cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate 

of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount 

as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is 

recognised using the original effective interest rate. 

1.8 TRANSFER PAYMENTS (REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS) 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not 

exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, 

the trading entity either receives value from another 

party without directly giving approximately equal value in 

obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that 

the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a 

liability is recognised. 

exchange, or gives value to another party without directly Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises the fair 

receiving approximately equal value in exchange. As the value of a transfer payment received or receivable from the 

trading entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as Gauteng Department of Economic Development. Transfer 

a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non- payments are recognised as revenue, except to the extent 

exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same 

carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an inflow, when the right to receive such grants is established 

amount of revenue equal to that reduction. and there is reasonable assurance that the trading entity will 

comply with the stipulations attached to it. The trading entity 

Revenue received from transfer payments and donations received a transfer payment from Gauteng Department of 

are recognised as revenue to the extent that the trading Economic Development to fund its operating expenditure 

entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or which is recognised in full as revenue. 

1.9 LEASES 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to 

the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The lease for the building is 

classified as an operating lease and payments made under the operating lease are charged to the statement of financial 

performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The difference between actual lease payments and the 

amount recognised is shown as part of current liabilities. The lease commitment for future years is disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements. 

1.10 COMMITMENTS 

Contracted commitments (except for the lease of the building) to be paid after 1 April 2012 are not recognised in the 

statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance, but are included in 

the disclosure notes. These commitments are linked to specific service delivery contracts and are payable in future years. 

1.11 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position, until such time 

as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written off as 

irrecoverable. Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position 

when the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received. Where the amount is approved without 
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1.12 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance according 

to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. If the 

expenditure is recoverable it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off 

as irrecoverable. 

1.13 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the relevant authority does 

not condone the expenditure it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable. 

1.14 RELATED PARTIES 

The entity operates in an economic sector currently 

dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled 

by the South African government. As a consequence of 

in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are 

required to perform such functions. 

the constitutional independence of the three spheres of Close members of the family of a person are considered to 

government in South Africa, only entities within the provincial be those family members who may be expected to influence, 

sphere of government are considered to be related parties. or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with 

the entity. 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the entity, 

including those charged with the governance of the entity 

1.15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS 

The trading entities· activities expose it to some financial 

risks, most of which are managed through procurement and 

payments being done through the Shared Services Division 

within the Gauteng Department of Finance. The trading entity 

did not have direct access to its bank account, and thus cash 

management was not performed at the trading entity but at 

the Gauteng Provincial Treasury. The most significant financial 

risks are related to reporting (inaccurate financial information 

that might result in inaccurate reporting and not meeting 

reporting deadlines in terms of PFMA) and financial systems 

(payment systems not aligned to business processes). 

Fair value interest rate risk 

Financial asset mentioned in note 14 and 15. 

Trade and other receivables pledged as security 

The trading entity does not hold any collateral as security. 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: 

The deposit and capitalised interest is not yet payable. 

Only transactions with related parties not at arm's length or 

not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 
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Notes to the annual financial statements 

2 REVENUE 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Grants received 

Total 

3 OTHER INCOME 

Other income consist of the following: 
Interest income lstaff debtors! 

31 Mar2015 

R'OOO 

62 616 

10 OOO 

72 616 

12 

4 SURPLUS/[DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR INCLUDES THE EXPENDITURE 

Marketing cost 5 552 

Technical and consulting services 7 398 

Transfers and subsidies 21 731 

Auditors· remuneration 538 

Depreciation 

Computer equipment 439 

Office furniture 224 

Amortisation - software 173 

Employee cost 15 780 

Short-term employee benefits r 14 193 

[Pension and medical costs I 1 587 

Other operating expenditure 2 722 

Rental 2 852 

Security services 189 

Cleaning services 190 

Parking 

Electricity 374 

Loss on disposal of an asset 3 

Total expenditure 58165 

31 Mar2014 

R'OOO 

44 115 

44115 

5 

6 200 

25 222 

13 OOO 

450 

13 067 

11 629 

1 438 

4 405 

2 058 

144 

143 

774 

3 

66 392 
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Cost 

Computer equipment 1 522 

Office furniture 751 

Leasehold improvements 1 865 

4 138 

31 March 2015 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

11 033) 

1544) 

1597) 

(2 174) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 31 March 2015 

Computer equipment 

Office furniture 

Leasehold improvements 

Opening 

balance 

Additions 

836 

302 

1 492 

2 630 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 31 March 2014 

Computer equipment 

Office furniture 

Leasehold improvements 

Opening 

balance 

5.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Cost 

Software licences 

Additions 

684 

397 

1 716 

2 797 

527 

527 

31 March 2015 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

1469) 

(469) 

601 

601 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 31 March 2015 

Software licences 

Opening 

Balance 

Additions 

231 

231 

Carrying 

value 

489 

207 

1 268 

1 964 

Carrying 

value 

58 

58 

Disposals 

13) 

(3) 

Disposals 

13) 

(3) 

Disposals 

Cost 

1 727 

751 

1 865 

4 343 

Cost 

527 

527 

31 March2014 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

1891 l 

1449) 

1373) 

(1 713) 

Depreciation 

' 

1344) 

195) 

1224) 

(663) 

Depreciation 

1446) 

196) 

1224) 

(766) 

31 March 2014 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

1295) 

(295) 

Amortisation 

1173) 

(173) 

Carrying 

value 

836 

302 

1 492 

2 630 

Total 

489 

207 

1 268 

1 964 

Total 

836 

302 

1 492 

2 630 

Carrying 

value 

232 

232 

Total 

58 

58 
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5.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

R econciliation of intangible assets -31 March 2014 

Software licences 

Total 

Opening 

balance 

329 

329 

Additions Disposals Amortisation 

63 [1601 

63 (160) 

Total 

232 

232 

During the year under review, management assessed the useful life of assets; certain assets· useful life was reassessed. 

The impact of the assessments was that the useful life was increased to 7 years and the depreciation would be R201 335.80 

before the reassessment and is now R45 197.46 after useful life assessments. 

6 CURRENT RECEIVABLES 
31Mar2015 31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO R'OOO 

Inter-entity Dinokeng trading entity 43 55 

Staff debtors 23 24 

Salary recoverable and other 

Other receivables 9 [3) 

Total 75 76 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO R'OOO 

Bank 11 977 266 

Petty cash 3 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 980 266 

8 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
31Mar2015 31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO R'OOO 

Trade and other payables 2 439 6 782 

Provision 386 351 

Staff leave accurals 836 137 

Other 55 36 

Total 3 716 7 306 

8.1 RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS 

31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO R'OOO 

Opening balance 351 233 

Utilised provisions during the year [2291 [2331 

Unutilised provisions during the year 122 351 

Provisions made during the year 265 

T-1.-I 
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9 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Surplus for the year 

Adjusted for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Loss on write-off of fixed assets 

lncrease/ldecreasel in payables 

!lncrease)/decrease in receivables

Increase in provision relating to employee costs 

Other movements 

Cash flow from operations before working capital changes 

10 COMMITMENTS 

31 Mar2015 

R'OOO 

14 463 

12 749) 

836 

3 

13 624) 

35 

11 714 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

[22 272) 

10 741 

926 

3 

2 212 

7 482 

118 

(11 531) 

Commitments in respect of capital and research cost not accrued at the reporting date: 

Contracted for 

Not contracted for 

Total 

This expenditure will be funded from approved voted funds. 

Within one year 

Thereafter 

Total 

11 PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 

11.1 DESCRIPTION OF THE ARRANGEMENT 

The Gauteng Department of Economic Development and the 

University of the Witwatersrand entered into an agreement 

in which they have agreed to cooperate in the establishment 

of an Interpretation Centre Complex ("ICC") for a concession 

area, comprising an orientation centre at a site owned by 

Wits, the Sterkfontein site, and an interpretation centre 

at a site owned by the Gauteng provincial government, the 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

8 528 

8 528 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

8 528 

8 528 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

4 752 

4 752 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

4 752 

4 752 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure (Pty) Ltd (formerly FSG Special 

Purpose Trading entity (Ptyl Limited), a private trading 

entity with Limited liability duly incorporated and registered 

under the Laws of the Republic of South Africa, registration 

number 2002/032101/07. 

Blue IQ Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited ("Blue 
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in the concessionaire with an aggregate subscription price 

of R163 OOO 000.00 (one hundred and sixty-three million 

rand) plus interest plus bulk sewage costs of R1 784 477.00 

(one million seven hundred and eighty-four thousand four 

hundred and seventy-seven rand). 

The concessionaire is required to apply the subscription 

price of the shares subscribed for by Blue IQ to design, 

construct, install exhibits at, operate and maintain the ICC, 

and has the right to raise revenue by, inter alia, charging 

and collecting revenue from visitors to the ICC or from 

commercial funders and sponsors who agree to fund 

particular projects at the ICC. 

The terms on which the ICC will be designed and 

constructed, exhibits installed and the ICC operated, are 

set out in a contract concluded on 19 October 2003. 

11.2 SIGNIFICANT TERMS OF THE ARRANGEMENT THAT MAY AFFECT THE 

AMOUNT, TIMING AND CERTAINTY OF FUTURE CASH FLOWS 

Substantial risk has been transferred to the concessionaire in this transaction and the terms of the arrangement preclude 

any effect on the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows. The concessionaire has lodged a construction and an 

operations and maintenance bond in terms of the contract. 

11.3 THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF: 

a) Rights to use specified assets

The concession rights conferred and obligations imposed on the concessionaire include the right to design, construct,

commission, install exhibits at, operate and maintain the ICC and generally to derive revenues from the operation of

the ICC, inter alia, by charging and collecting revenues from visitors to the ICC and from any third parties who may,

from time to time, be granted rights to operate businesses within the concession area. In return for the rights the

concessionaire is required to pay a concession fee to the concessor. This concession fee is paid into the Cradle of

Humankind trust account.

The initial concession period shall be the period beginning on the effective date and expiring at midnight of the day 

preceding the 10th anniversary of the date on which the construction works have been certified as complete pursuant. 

b) Obligations to provide or rights to expect provisions of services; to acquire or build items of property, plant and

equipment; to deliver or rights to receive specified assets at the end of the concession period

The concessionaire is required to ensure the timely and proper completion of the design, construction works,

exhibition installation, and operation and maintenance of the ICC, and such future design and construction as may be

necessary to meet the concessionaire's obligations in terms of the concession contract.

cl Renewal and termination options 

The concession period is automatically extended for periods not exceeding five years, provided that conditions 

stipulated in the contract are met. If the concession period is not extended, all movable project assets forming part of 

the concession area shall vest in the concessionaire until termination of this concession contract. Upon termination of 

the concession contract, ownership of the movable project assets at both the Mohale's Gate site and the Sterkfontein 

site shall vest in the owner of that site (or any other person or entity agreed on by the concessor and Wits at that time) 

and shall be transferred by the concessionaire to such new owners. 

Other rights and obligations (e.g. major overhauls) 

The concession contract specifies requirements for reinvestment during the concession period. 
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

At 31 December 2013, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and the approximate 

fair values due to short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities and the accounting policies for financial instruments 

have been applied to the line items below: 

31 March 2015 

Assets as per reporting date 

Account receivable 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total 

Liabilities as per reporting date 

Provision 

Trade and other payables 

Total 

31 March 2014 

Assets as per reporting date 

Account receivable 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total 

Liabilities as per reporting date 

Provision 

Trade and other payables 

Total 

Loans and receivables 

R'OOO 

2 022 

75 

11 980 

14 077 

386 

3 330 

3 716 

2 861 

76 

266 

3 203 

351 

6 955 

7 306 

Fair value 

R'OOO 

2 022 

75 

11 980 

14 077 

386 

3 330 

3 716 

2 861 

76 

266 

3 203 

351 

6 955 

7 306 

12.1 RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The chief executive officer has approved and monitored 

the risk management processes, including cash flow 

management and reporting structures in relation to the 

management of financial instruments risk. 

These risks, and the way they are managed, are 

detailed below. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to 

meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. 

Liquidity risk management within the entity focuses on 

working capital management, cash balances and cash flow 

planning, coupled with liquidity support arrangements with 

the Gauteng Department of Economic Development. 
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12.1 RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The table below analyses the entity's financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 

the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 

undiscounted cash flows. 

R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO 

2015 Not Later than one Later than one month Later than three 

Trade and other payables 

Leave accrual 

Provisions 

month and not Later than months and not Later 

208 

70 

R'OOO 

three months than one year 

416 1 870 

140 62 6 

386 

R'OOO R'OOO 

2014 Not Later than one Later than one month Later than three 

Trade and other payables 

Leave accrual 

month and not later than months and not Later 

5 68 

11 

three months than one year 

1136 5 114 

22 104 

Provisions 351 

Credit risk not exposed to this risk as it does not have any financial 

The entity's financial assets are trade and other receivables instruments through which its value might be influenced by 

and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the changes in market prices. The entity's financial instruments 

risk that the counterparty will default on its obligations are only receivables and payables between the entity and its 

in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed related parties. 

to this risk as it does not charge a fee for the service that 

it provided. The balance of receivable relates to inter

trading entity balance between the entity and Cradle of 

Humankind site. Both these entities are managed by the 

same management. 

Market risk 

This is the risk that financial instruments· fair values will 

fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. The entity is 

13 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Interest rate risk 

This is a risk of Loss due to a change in interest rates. The 

trading entity has no significant interest-bearing assets and 

long-term borrowings. There are no borrowings at variable 

rates of interest where the entity is not exposed to interest 

rate risk. The trading entity analyses its interest rate 

exposure on a dynamic basis. 

The entity is liable for a contingent Liability resulting from certain employees who have capped Leave. These employees 

are entitled to a maximum of five days of Leave in each year from their capped Leave. The amount is paid on the occurrence 

of future events that are not merely controlled by the entity. It is paid upon death or retirement, and when an employee 

resigns the entity is not Liable for payment. 

Capped leave 

Total 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

227 

227 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

219 

219 
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14 GOING CONCERN 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The entity 

will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds will be available 

to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 

commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

15 RELATED PARTIES 

The related party relationships, transactions and balances as listed below exist: 

31 March 2015 Total transaction for Balances (creditor) 

Dinokeng 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure [Pty) Ltd 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 

31 March 2014 
I 

Dinokeng 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure [Pty) Ltd 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 

Dinokeng 

Dinokeng and the Cradle of Humankind Site are sister 

trading entities administered under the Gauteng 

Department of Economic Development to create a viable 

and attractive geospatial tourism destination in an area, 

which will result in economic growth. 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure (Pty) Ltd 

The main shareholder in terms of the PPP arrangement 

with the Cradle of Humankind Site has withdrawn its 

support to fund the operations of Maropeng and as a result 

Maropeng was recapitalised by Cradle of Humankind World 

Heritage Site. Over and above this, the Cradle utilises the 

conference facilities of Maropeng at a discount of 10%. 

the year debtor 

14 985 7 

21 969 

72 616 

3 840 

15 676 54 

13 124 

44 115 

5 487 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 

GDED is the Cradle of Humankind Site's mother 

department. The above transactions relate to voted funds 

allocated to the entity to implement its strategic objectives. 

Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTAI 

The Cradle of Humankind Site and the GTA are fellow 

entities administered under the Gauteng Department 

of Economic Development. The COH WHS performs 

collaborative marketing activities with the GTA as per the 

direction of the MEC. The GTA also provides corporate 

services to the COH WHS. 
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16 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Key management personnel 

Key management personnel are those persons having 

authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 

For the year ended Basic salary Employer 

31 March 2015 R'OOO contribution: 

pension 

R'OOO 

Chief executive officer 

Robertson D 501 

Other senior management 

Asmal Y 406 

Tlebere K 447 58 

Sathekge M 354 46 

Chettiar S 300 39 

Pillay M 268 35 

Layton N 269 35 

A mod 304 39 

Sefoko 198 26 

Grand total 3 047 278 

Robertson D 464 

Other senior management 

Asmal Y 376 

Tlebere K 458 55 

Sathekge M 325 42 

Chettiar S 253 33 

Pillay M 270 32 

Layton N 270 32 

Amod 300 36 

Grand total 2 716 230 

controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, 

including all directors, chief executive officers and other 

senior management. 

Employer Allowances Bonus Total 

contribution: R'OOO & notch 

medical increase 

R'OOO payable 

R'OOO 

501 

406 

9 87 37 638 

190 590 

12 149 500 

3 118 23 447 

3 118 53 478 

17 49 25 434 

61 5 290 

44 772 143 4 284 

464 

376 

9 82 604 

175 542 

8 128 24 445 

3 110 24 439 

3 110 24 438 

16 43 395 

39 648 72 3 705 

The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng trading entity and Cradle of 

Humankind World Heritage Site trading entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and operational objectives. 
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17 CHANGE IN ESTIMATE 

During the year the following changes were made to the estimations employed in the accounting for assets: 

Change in depreciation/amortisation resulting 
from reassessment of useful lives. The following 109 

categories are affected: 

Office equipment 3 

Computer equipment 106 

Value derived using 

amended estimate 

(R'OOO) 

38 

37 

Value impact of 

change in estimate 

(R'OOO) 

71 

2 

69 
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Performance information 

Strategic goal 1: 
To facilitate and promote the Gauteng City Region as an investment, trade and tourism destination 

Visitor Percentage 70% (second 70% (second 100% (sign-off, None None 
requirements completion of construction) construction) handover, project 
are met through the Maropeng decommission) 
world-class Hominid House 
products and upgrade by March 
infrastructure 2015 
provision, 
and unique Percentage 100% (sign-off, 100% (sign-off, 60% (phase 2 - Delays in the payments The funds have 
authentic completion of the handover, handover, project design received from the recently been 
experiences Maropeng Virtual project project concluded) project sponsor IDAC) transferred, 

Lab by March decommission) decommission) caused the delay in the and the 
2015 delivery of this project project is to 

be delivered in 
the 1 st quarter 
of the 2015/16 
financial year 

Strategic goal 2: 
Government, non-governmental stakeholders and communities work together to ensure responsible and sustainable developments of COH WHS 

Tangible 
community 
benefit through 
growth of the 
local tourism 
industry and 
targeted 
community 
project 
implementation 

3 

Strategic goal 3: 

Number 
of schools 
sponsored to 
visit Sterkfontein 
and Maropeng by 
March 2015 

10 10 10 

A management system that ensures the conservation of the fossil sites within the COHWHS 

Management 
of fossil sites in 
the COHWHS by 
2016 

4 

Strategic goal 4: 

Number of fossil 
site inspection 
reports by March 
2015 

2 2 

The protection and conservation of the outstanding universal value of the COHWHS 

The sustainable 
environmental 
management 
of the COHWHS 
by conforming 
to prescribed 
regulatory 
requirements 

Strategic goal 5: 

Number of water 
monitoring 
reports produced 
by March 2015 

2 2 

2 

2 

None None 

None None 

None None 

Government, non-governmental stakeholders and communities work together to ensure responsible and sustainable management and development of the 
COH WHS 

Tangible 6 Number of 25 25 25 None None 
community people employed 
benefit through by Working on 
growth of the Fire project by 
local tourism March 2015 
industry and 
targeted Number of 110 110 112 Target exceeded by 2 None 
community people employed 
project at Maropeng 
implementation and Sterkfontein 

Interpretation 
Centres by March 
2015 
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Report on strategic objectiues and leuels 
of success 

S.l Introduction: Dinokeng programme

The purpose of the Dinokeng programme is to implement the Dinokeng master plan. Envisaged in the master plan is the 

development of three tourism hubs and five tourism nodes in the Dinokeng area in order to create a tourism destination in a 

gradual and phased approach. The Dinokeng area extends from Roodeplaat in the south, to Hammanskraal in the north, to 

Moloto and Cullinan in the East. The tourism hubs are based in the Dinokeng area and the Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) is 

the primary attraction, while the development of the Roodeplaat Dam and Cullinan areas are secondary tourism hubs. 

5.1.1 DEPARTMENTAL AND UNIT STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The strategic objective of Dinokeng is aligned to the 

strategic priorities for the province. The strategy of the 

Dinokeng trading entity is to invest in infrastructure and 

tourism facilities to enhance private-sector investment 

in tourism business activities in the project area. The 

rationale for the development of the project is to contribute 

to economic growth and job creation in the impoverished 

• Implement models for the development of tourism in

Roodeplaat and Cullinan

• Apply advocacy, including targeted stakeholder

engagement, general stakeholder engagement and

cooperative governance, in order to provide strategic

guidance on the expansion, management and

development of the game reserve

north-western region of Gauteng province. The key strategic • Manage the game reserve in collaboration with the

objectives are to: 

• Establish an economically viable free-roaming Big

Five game reserve as a unique tourism destination for

Gauteng in a rural, undeveloped area characterised by

limited opportunities for job creation

• Grow the arts and craft project, with 30 beneficiaries

producing state-of-the-art crafts for local and

international markets

• Implement an environmental management plan

for Roodeplaat

• Facilitate the expansion of the DGR to achieve

ecological and economical viability

• Facilitate the road networks within the Dinokeng area

landowners' association and its structures, which are

the Dinokeng Game Reserve Management Association

and the Dinokeng Game Reserve Game Enterprises Ltd

• Develop and establish economically viable self-drive

routes in the DGR

• Expand self-navigation tourism signs in Dinokeng

• Foster partnerships with local businesses, state

agencies and government departments for community

projects and to also create sustainable opportunities

for the effective participation and transfer of benefits

to members of the adjacent communities around the

tourism hubs and nodes in Dinokeng

• Increase domestic and international leisure and

business tourism to the destination

5.1.2 KEY MILESTONES AND ACTIVITIES IN THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW 

The implementation of projects during the 2014/15 financial year must be viewed within the context of the developments 

on the reconfiguration process outlined above. In terms of non-financial performance, the Dinokeng Project achievement 

stood at 66. 7% (Dinokeng has achieved six of the nine targets), with the balance of 33.3% of the projects being at various 

stages of completion. 

OINOKENG GAME RESERVE 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) unit, working 

together with the Department of Environmental Affairs 

through a signed service-level agreement, managed to 

created 51 temporary jobs in the DGR. 

Also during the period under review, an additional 51 jobs 
"·-�- ��;,....,.;,....,,1 in n:>rtn.,rc:hin with the Dinokena Game
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exceeded by 14 as the appointment of additional staff for 

security purposes such as anti-poaching measures and for 

phase one of the self-drive route project became necessary. 

Regarding the self-drive route project, 66km of road was 

developed within the Dinokeng Game Reserve. A successful 

implementation started between November 2014 and 

January 2015. This project is aimed at ensuring a visitor 

experience of viewing at their own leisure, across numerous 

private properties and government properties in this unique 

conglomerate. By using this route, contributions to the 

revenue generated by the DGR are made. 

Of most importance, it should be noted that projects 

envisaged along the self-drive route, such as the picnic 

site and the viewing deck, will be community-run projects. 

It is envisaged that this will empower members of the 

community to run small businesses and also create jobs. 

The DGR unit continued to ensure implementation of an 

environmental management plan for compliance. This 

included undertaking natural resource management and 

ecological management to ensure that the DGR becomes 

TOURISM HUBS 

and remains a competitive ecotourism destination product 

with the ability to create almost 600 jobs indirectly and 98 

jobs directly. The DGR maintains an open natural landscape 

for ecological continuity and provides for rehabilitation 

operations to reinstate its former ecosystem health. 

Part of this includes ecological field assessments and 

bio-monitoring (veld condition assessments, game counts 

for treasury requirements, ecological carrying capacity 

assessments, and river health bio-monitoring) to ensure 

sustainable delivery of ecosystem services (delivery of 

clean water, clean air, productive soils and natural resource 

harvesting like wood and game products for the curio shop). 

During the period under review, it is worth noting that 

the DGR was one of the few free-roaming game reserves 

in South Africa that did not experience rhino poaching -

evidence of the strict control of access and security as 

a result of the strong patrolling of the game reserve by 

the DGRMA. We continue to work with law enforcement 

agencies and other players to ensure that the poaching of 

wild animals in the game reserve is curtailed. 

During the year under review the unit continued negotiations The model recommends strategies and presents detailed 

for the land and properties required for the development of plans on proposed tourism projects in Cullinan. The vision 

tourism hubs in both Cullinan and the Roodeplaat Dam area. aims to promote Cullinan as Gauteng's most preferred, 

All properties and land required for the development of the 

two hubs are owned by the state in the case of Roodeplaat, 

and are privately owned in the case of Cullinan. A great 

deal of effort was put into negotiating for ownership of 

the earmarked state land and properties with strategic 

partners. A transaction between the national Department of 

Public Works and the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure 

Development regarding the state land in Roodeplaat 

was entered into and requires finalisation. In Cullinan, 

negotiations with the private owner, Petra Diamonds 

(Cullinan Diamond Mine), has been very slow following the 

resignation of the manager who was tasked with this. 

In taking the work of developing the Roodeplaat tourism 

hub forward, in 2014/15 the unit planned to develop an 

environmental management plan for the Roodeplaat 

Dam area. Through a consultative process with experts 

in conservation and environmental management, bids 

were solicited in December 2014 but proposals received 

were above the available budget. This project will now be 

undertaken in the coming financial year and the service 

provider will be sought through an open bid process. 

In Cullinan, the unit planned to implement the proposed 

projects that were recommended in the Cullinan Tourism 

Model developed in the 2013/14 financial year. During the 

year under review, the unit shared the completed Cullinan 

all-year, short-break destination, attracting discerning 

visitors to savour a unique blend of polished and memorable 

heritage and nature-based visitor experiences, while 

remaining true to its heritage and living the values of 

responsible tourism. 

In 2014/15, the focus was on the development of the Cullinan 

brand. This work was led by the e-marketing and brand unit 

and will be finalised in the financial year 2015/16 

Negotiations are at an advanced stage for the establishment 

of the world's highest bungee jump, which will be based in 

Cullinan. At 470m, the bungee jump in Cullinan will dwarf 

the current highest jumps in the word being: 

• 321 m, Royal Gorge Bridge (Colorado, US)

• 233m, Macau Towers (Macau, China)

• 220m, Verzasca Dam (Ticino, Switzerland)

• 216m, Bloukrans Bridge (Western Cape, South Africa)

Strategic discussions have been held with key stakeholders 

in the development of a concept for the establishment of an 

anti-nuclear, -chemical and -biological warfare museum in 

Roodeplaat. This work is in its initial phase; if this project 

is approved and goes ahead, it will be the world's first such 

museum, which will represent humanity's aspiration for a 

better future. 
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND COMMUNITY PROJECTS 

During the period under review, five primary cooperatives and standard operational procedures regarding living close to a 

one secondary cooperative were formalised and registered game reserve. 

with the master of the high court. 

The cooperatives are involved in the arts and craft 

programme, which is a part of the community-beneficiation 

initiative. The registered cooperatives are Dinkgotsa Botaki 

arts primary cooperative; Lithlabile O Leorele arts primary 

cooperative; Ghafd magical crafters primary cooperative; 

Batlou arts primary cooperative; Mosawoo arts primary 

cooperative; and Dinokasi secondary cooperative. 

Twenty-three direct jobs were created through this project, 

whereby members from local communities were trained and 

skilled in craft making and operating their newly developed 

skill as a business. 

In addition, the unit supported the cooperatives in terms 

of business skills, trade and mentorship training. Training 

The public participation and community benefits unit further 

strengthened the development of tourism in the area through 

partnerships with local tourism businesses and concerns. 

The partnership with the International Association of Peace 

through Tourism, which recognises the Dinokeng Game 

Reserve as a World Peace Park and the town of Cullinan as a 

World Peace Town, was further consolidated in the year under 

review. This partnership, together with other stakeholders 

in the country, led to the successful hosting of the IIPT World 

Conference 2015 at Emperors Palace in February 2015. 

The unit made possible further partnerships, such as those 

with the Department of Correctional Services facility of 

Baviaanspoort in Roodeplaat for the beneficiation of the 

poorer communities of Roodeplaat, among others. 

included business management and leadership; bookkeeping, The unit continues to ensure that the intervention of the 

record-keeping and filing; group management; costing Gauteng government in the area complies with its objectives 

and pricing of products; and customer care. The primary of an inclusive economy through creating opportunities for 

cooperatives formed smaller groups, with each group SMMEs and businesses from underprivileged communities. 

focusing on a particular production line, such as It also continues to ensure that existing and future 

embroidery, beadwork, woodwork, fabric printing, 

mould making or recycling. 

The unit negotiated with the Dinokeng Game Reserve 

Management Association for the provision of trading space 

at the Tau Gate. Further negotiations were entered into 

with various businesses in Cullinan, which agreed to make 

available spaces within their businesses for the display 

of products. 

businesses promote ethical, responsible and sustainable 

trade through initiatives such as responsible tourism and 

fair trade in tourism. 

By partnering with the Gauteng Tourism Authority, the 

Dinokeng Project continued to create market access through 

participating in exhibitions and promotions throughout 

South Africa and in strategic platforms around the world. 

The project opens up these platforms for the participation 

of SMMEs by taking on the financial implications of their 

About 500 learners from local schools attended the Science participation as well as ensuring that they are mentored and 

Unlimited Expo 2014 as part of the school visit project, which trained in business marketing and promotion. This work will 

forms part of the broader Dinokeng Awareness Campaign that always underpin the very essence of what the project was 

aims to educate learners about animal management and the intended to achieve. 
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5.1.3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS 

The Dinokeng Project continued to engage with strategic and affected stakeholders as part of its stakeholder engagement 

strategy and plan. The main focus of this is to share and discuss plans with various stakeholders so as to align plans and 

resources in a streamlined and coordinated manner. 

5.1.4 CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES 

The immediate plans to expand the DGR to 40 OOO hectares 

continued during the period under review. However, 

dependency on the willingness of potential landowners 

to incorporate their pieces of land proved a challenge to 

achieving this goal. Also, the delays in the finalisation of 

the share model and the resignations of members of the 

Expansion Subcommittee structure had a negative effect 

on the attainment of this goal. It should be stated that new 

members of the Expansion Subcommittee have 

since been appointed. It should be further noted that 

members participate and serve on this committee on a 

voluntary basis. 

The delays in the finalisation of the land claims continue 

to be a challenge. Engagements with the Regional Land 

Claims Commission (RLCC) and the Gauteng Department 

of Agriculture and Rural Development (GOARD) continue to 

ensure finalisation of the application for Protected Areas 

Status for the DGR. 

The RLCC is facing human capacity constraints. A new 

officer has been appointed by GOARD and is prioritising this 

piece of work. It is also believed that since the Dinokeng 

Project and GOARD now report to one member of the 

Executive Council, efforts to resolve bottlenecks will be 

expedited. Failure to conclude and declare the DGR as a 

nature reserve have huge negative implications on the 

project as it presents possibilities of changes in land use 

in the area. 

Infighting among local political structures in the adjacent 

urban areas continues to hinder the efforts of the Dinokeng 

Project to implement planned community projects. As a 

result of the point above, plans to establish a Dinokeng 

Game Reserve Community Development Trust (DGR CDT) 

5.1.5 OPPORTUNITIES 

were hindered. It should be noted that the DGR CDT was 

going to be a vehicle through which allocated funds were 

channelled for community development projects. It was 

envisaged that a number of jobs were going to be created 

through these initiatives. 

Patterns of landownership in the DGR are slowly changing, 

with black people assuming landownership; however, 

efforts to increase the percentage of ownership need to 

be increased. 

The finalisation of the land assembly work both in Cullinan 

and Roodeplaat continued to be a challenge. The Dinokeng 

Project has continued to engage with the private landowner 

in Cullinan, the Cullinan Diamond Mine, for the finalisation 

of the land and property exchange whereby the state wants 

to exchange ownership of land parcels suitable for mining 

purposes, for land parcels and properties suitable for 

economic development purposes. 

The land and properties will be used by the Dinokeng 

Project for tourism investment ventures. The delay in 

finalisation of the exchange has a negative impact on the 

implementation of projects planned in Cullinan, i.e. the 

Cullinan Outdoor Mining Museum and a walking trail. 

The same challenges in finalising land and properties 

transfer in Roodeplaat are affecting plans to develop the 

Roodeplaat hub. Constant engagement has been held with 

the national Department of Public Works and the Gauteng 

Department of Infrastructure Development to expedite 

this. However, a high level of management is required 

as engagement at junior levels has not produced the 

desired outcome. 

The township revitalisation programme presents opportunities to support local small businesses from adjacent 

communities. Efforts to ensure that these businesses become registered in the Gauteng Provincial Government Database 

of Suppliers will be increased. The organisation aims to procure all of its goods and services that are available from small 

local businesses from these businesses as part of its aims to support and promote SMMEs in the area. 

Furthermore, the Dinokeng Project is encouraging the DGR and all products and landowners in the area to support and 

promote local small businesses from the adjacent communities. 
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The expansion of the DGR presents opportunities to transform the racial land and business ownership patterns in the 

area. Scientific studies have shown that as the DGR expands, the project will break even and become economically viable 

and also become a sustainable project. This is very important in the sense that the more the DGR expands, the more job 

opportunities will be created. 

5.2 Introduction to research planning 

5.2.1 UNIT OBJECTIVES: TOURISM AND INVESTMENT 

The research and planning programme is responsible strategic research that seeks to inform marketing, 

for the monitoring and evaluation of the impacts of the investment and brand management strategy for the 

development of the destination. The tourism and investment organisation, and also to inform decisions for further 

monitoring and evaluation sub-programme conducts tourism development in the area. 

5.2.2 KEY MILESTONES IN PERIOD UNDER REVIEW 

The tourism and investment research unit continued to conduct tourism supply-side performance assessments of tourism 

in the Cradle of Humankind, spanning areas such as accommodation and tour operator services and attractions. Included 

in the trend-tracking study was the tourism labour market, given the strategic importance of sector job-creation matters. 

A visitor satisfaction study was piloted at Maropeng to test the methodology and a full visitor satisfaction study will be 

commissioned in 2015/16. 

In partnership with National Department of Tourism and Cape Peninsula University of Technology, the Tri-Rock Triathlon 

tourism and economic event impact assessment study was undertaken. 

In regard to research information sharing, the findings of the Gauteng Tourism Demand and Supply Study were presented 

to the West Rand Section 80 Committee, West Rand Municipal Tourism and the Cradle of Humankind General Managers· 

Forum - these are key COH WHS stakeholders in the West Rand District Municipality. 
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5.2.3 CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES 

EQUITY ASSURANCE/TRANSFORMATION 

This sub-unit focuses on equity assurance, and ensures 

compliance reporting on sector transformation and 

GEYODI (gender, youth and people with disabilities) 

beneficiation matters. 

Through this sub-unit, the agency participated in 

initiatives on youth development, such as the Gauteng 

Inter-Governmental Youth Forum, the development of the 

National Youth Policy, the crafting of the Gauteng Youth 

Strategy, and the Gauteng Youth Safety Summit. In regard 

to GEYODI interventions, the GTA serves on task teams for 

disability, coordinated by the office of the premier. 

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE 

This sub-unit served to keep COH WHS, Dinokeng Project 

and the Gauteng Tourism Authority abreast of legislative 

developments that may have direct and/or indirect impact 

on its operations. Additionally, it provided legal support 

services to GTA, COH WHS and Dinokeng, which were 

initially earmarked for a merger. These services included 

contractual and administrative/regulatory law, legislative 

interpretation, general legal interpretation, perusal and 

input on project-approval reports. 

The legal support services provided also extended to 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure, the GTA Board and the 

Bid Acquisitions Committee. All litigation and pre

litigation matters were satisfactorily managed within the 

parameters of the applicable judicial mechanisms. Due 

to the judicious exercising of legal risk management and 

the timely and appropriate legal advice rendered, only one 

litigation matter was instituted against the organisation 

during the period under review. A contract register was 

implemented by this sub-unit in order to manage the 

contractual issues of the organisation. The process of 

vetting and drafting contracts was also successfully 

managed and maintained. 

5.3 Destination brand marketing 

With Gauteng's only free-roaming Big Five game reserve, and with gradual increased product development, Dinokeng is 

slowly gaining ground in becoming another premier visitor experience in Gauteng. The brand work for this destination has 

followed the required pace. 

UNIT STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The brand unit existed as part of a bigger integrated marketing and communications division in Gauteng Tourism, 

supporting the following broader objectives, also relevant to Dinokeng: 
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• Increased brand awareness of the Dinokeng visitor brand

• The creation and roll-out of a refreshed brand positioning for improved stakeholder use within and around the

Dinokeng area

• The development of brand toolkits guiding the visual and inherent brand identity across all Dinokeng brand contact

points, ranging from markets to a level of operations such as branding, websites, social media and other

KEY MILESTONES AND ACTIVITIES IN THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW 

5.3.1 BRAND MANAGEMENT 

Dinokeng, with Gauteng's only free-roaming Big Five game reserve, and with gradual increased product development, is 

slowly gaining ground in becoming another premier visitor experience in Gauteng. The brand work for this destination has 

followed the required pace. 

UNIT STRATEGIC GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The brand unit exists as part of a bigger integrated marketing and communications division supporting the following 

broad objectives: 

• Increased brand awareness of Dinokeng, domestically and internationally, as an all-of-Africa experience offering

historical, natural and cultural attractions

• The creation and roll-out of a refreshed brand positioning for improved stakeholder use within and around the

Dinokeng area

• Driving visitor numbers to the destination from markets identified by innovative marketing and PR campaigns that

raise the profile and increase awareness of the destination

• The development of brand toolkits guiding the visual and inherent brand identity across all of Dinokeng·s brand contact

points, ranging from markets to levels of operations such as branding, websites, social media and other media.

The above-mentioned goals are strategic (long term), medium term and short term, and are achieved through a number 

of key functional areas of work. These include visual brand identity implementation; photography; design; collateral 

development; and destination branding and brand management, e.g. consistent messaging, etc. 

5.3.2 CULLINAN BRAND DEVELOPMENT 

Post the development of a tourism model by Shisaka, the brand unit was commissioned to develop a Cullinan visual 

and inherent brand identity that would also assist in creating a unique identity for the small town within the broader 

Dinokeng offering. Moja Nation, a service provider specialising in brand, design, communications and related functions, 

was appointed to do this work. A new logo and visual and inherent identities, as well as Cl manual, which are key project 

deliverables, will be completed in the second quarter of the 2015/16 financial year. 

5.3.3 LOCAL TOURISM ASSOCIATION 

The development of a Tourism Institutional Framework at 

a local level was completed by Grant Thornton during the 

past year with extensive stakeholder engagement in the 

three tourism hub areas of Roodeplaat, Cullinan and the 

Dinokeng Game Reserve. The project was concluded with 

a developed local tourism association [L TA) Framework 

Marketing Plan and Operations Model for setting up and 

operation of Dinokeng's very first official L TA. A private

sector partner will be appointed in the new financial year for 

a one-year pilot period to not only set up and kick-start the 

L TA, but also to get increased stakeholder buy-in to become 

members of the association. 
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5.3.4 SUMMER CAMPAIGN 

The Sho't Left summer campaign was presented by Dinokeng 

through strategic partnerships with the Gauteng Tourism 

Authority to the consumer, in an inspiring and compelling 

fashion aimed at gaining a competitive advantage on the world 

stage. Innovative emerging marketing tools were used in order 

to reach new audiences and encourage repeat visitation. This 

was in response to the domestic tourism growth strategy and 

integration with the South African Tourism Sho't Left Campaign. 

The campaign's critical success was Dinokeng partnering with 

Auto Reach's "Back-to-Reality Promobus Summer Magic" 

campaign. This campaign was introduced in December 2015 and 

was designed to target consumers coming into Gauteng. The N3 

filling stations at Bergview and Montrose proved that they are 

the ideal replacement for toll plazas, distributing to almost 22% 

of the overall traffic reached. Over 85 OOO discount vouchers 

were distributed as part of the campaign. 

5.LJ Euents

5.4.1 SCIENCE UNLIMITED EXPO 

In partnership with the Dinokeng Game Reserve 

Management Association, the Dinokeng trading entity 

participated in the abovementioned expo with great success, 

not only increasing brand awareness among learners, 

but also among educators, the educational and science 

sector, as well as corporate entities with strong interests in 

education, nature and wildlife. 

Dinokeng area learners were identified as important 

ambassadors for the area, and the supply of peak caps 

for Dinokeng learners was identified as an important tool 

to not only increase awareness, but to push strong brand 

ambassadorship, especially at a time when Dinokeng is 

perceived as a government delivery creating no benefits for 

its immediate and intended beneficiaries. 

5.5 Trade and consumer shows 

5.5.1 TOURISM INDABA 2014 

The Cradle of Humankind Site successfully exhibited three ··must visit" events of its kind on the global calendar. 

at lndaba 2014, Africa's premier tourism trade show, It showcases the wide variety of Southern Africa's best 

with great success. lndaba is one of the largest tourism tourism products, and attracts international visitors and 

marketing events on the African calendar and one of the top media from across the world. 

5.5.2 INTERNATIONAL TOURISM BOURSE (1TB) 

The purpose of the 1TB Berlin exhibition in Germany was to increase brand awareness among the international tourism 

trade sectors, forming part of the South African 2014 sell. The exhibition at 1TB, which was done under the auspices of 

South African Tourism and in collaboration with the Gauteng Tourism Authority, saw the profiling of the COH WHS as one of 

the top heritage sites in Gauteng. 
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5.5.3 WORLD TRAVEL MARKET 

The Global Travel Trends Report released by Euromonitor International at the World Travel Market (WTM} in London gives 

the tourism industry a glimpse into the future and reminds the industry of how important it is to stay relevant, innovative 

and fluid. One important key finding was the fact that cycling is overtaking golf as the strongest contender for the leisure 

time of middle-aged men. This finding offers an opportunity for the organisation to take advantage of this trend by 

marketing and putting together packages to promote and sell the COH WHS as a preferred cycling destination in Gauteng 

that offers some of the best cycling routes. 

5.5.4 GETAWAY SHOW 

The Getaway Show, an annual national consumer show for all outdoor product suppliers as well as travel- and tourism

related marketers, provided an excellent opportunity for cooperative marketing, as Gauteng Tourism allocates additional 

booth and outside space for products. The show offered the COH WHS an opportunity to market new and existing products 

and services directly to the relevant consumers. 

The Getaway Show assists in increasing visitor volumes, visitor spending and economic impact for destinations by 

developing awareness and preference. In 2014, the show had more than 260 exhibitors and welcomed 23 949 friends and 

family through the doors. 

5.5.5 OUTDOOR ECO ADVENTURE & TRAVEL EXPO 

The expo is particularly effective when local operators attend and sell their products directly to the consumers. The expo is 

an annual national consumer show for all outdoor product suppliers as well as travel- and tourism-related marketers. 

The show attracted a high-quality audience of high-income earners who have a passion for adventure, travel and the 

outdoors. This audience falls within the COH WHS target tourism market, i.e. a large audience falling within the LSM (living 

standards measure} bracket of 7 to 10. 
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Outlook for 2lSll5/16 

The plans for the 2015/16 financial year in Cullinan 
include development of three gateways and an 
approximately 800m walking trail that will anchor the 
Cullinan Outdoor Mining Museum. This is in line with the 
Cullinan economic model that was developed as a guide to 
the development of the Cullinan hub. 

In Roodeplaat, the Dinokeng Project plans to develop 
a model for an anti-chemical and -biological warfare 
museum. The museum will create a platform to tell a 
story about the impact and effects of chemical warfare 
on humanity. 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve unit will be establishing the 
second phase of the self-drive route project, which involves 
a number of community-beneficiation projects. The Working 
on Fire project, which employs 50 people, will proceed 
with a fire management programme. Efforts to expand the 
DGR will continue with negotiations to facilitate written 
commitments and to consolidate fragmented pieces into 
ecologically and economically viable units for incorporation 
with extended infrastructure. 

The management obligations as contained in the 
memorandum of understanding with the military regarding 
the incorporation of its proclaimed nature reserve into the 
DGR will continue. The implementation of an environmental 
management plan for the DGR will continue with the 
support provided to the game management committee, 
through scientific decision support and compliance with 
environmental legislation. 

The public participation and community benefits (PPCB) 
unit will continue to work to support the cooperatives 
established by the Dinokeng Project in the project area 
as a community-beneficiation project, including providing 
trading space, training, mentoring and coaching. The 
Department of Basic Education has made available to the 
Dinokeng Project the Klipdrift Primary School for use 
for community-beneficiation projects. A number of such 
projects will be identified and implemented together with 
the Community Development Trust, which is planned to be 
established in the coming financial year. The PPCB unit will 
continue to ensure inclusive economic activities and the 
participation of the local communities in the project. 
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RNNURL FINRNCIRL STRTEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Report of the Ruditor-General to the Gauteng Prouincial 

Legislature on the Dinokeng Trading Entit� 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

INTRODUCTION 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the

Dinokeng trading entity set out on pages 89 to 108,

which comprise the statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial

performance, statement of changes in equity and

statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

as well as the notes, comprising a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the

preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with the South African

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting

Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements

of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa

(No 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control

as the accounting officer determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted

my audit in accordance with the International

Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that

I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers internal control relevant to the

trading entity's preparation and fair presentation

of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.
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5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

audit opinion.

OPINION 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly,

in all material respects, the financial position of the

Dinokeng trading entity as at 31 March 2015 and its

financial performance and cash flows for the year then

ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP

and the requirements of the PFMA.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER 

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

8. As disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements, the

corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have been

restated as a result of an error discovered during the 

year ended 31 March 2015.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 

REQUIREMENTS 

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa

(No 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 

terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings

on the reported performance information against

predetermined objectives for selected strategic goals

presented in the annual performance report, non

compliance with legislation and internal control. The

objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings

as described under each subheading but not to gather

evidence to express assurance on these matters.

Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion

on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance

information for the following selected strategic goals

presented in the annual performance report of the

trading entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

• Strategic goal 2: a critical mass of tourism

infrastructure and significant attractions ensuring

the integrity, viability and equity of the Dinokeng

project area as a tourism destination on page 109
• Strategic goal 3: strengthen stakeholder

engagement and ensure effective participation in 

the development of the Dinokeng project area on 

page 109 

11. I evaluated the reported performance information

against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance

information to determine whether it was presented

in accordance with the National Treasury's annual

reporting principles and whether the reported

performance was consistent with the planned strategic

goals. I further performed tests to determine whether

indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable,

specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as 

required by the National Treasury's Framework for 

Managing Programme Performance Information

(FMPPI)

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate

and complete.

14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness

and reliability of the reported performance information

for the selected strategic goals.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 

15. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the

trading entity had complied with applicable legislation

regarding financial matters, financial management and

other related matters. I did not identify any instances of 

material non-compliance with specific matters in key 

legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in 

terms of the PAA. 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

16. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of 

the financial statements, the performance report

and compliance with legislation. I did not identify any

significant deficiencies in internal control.

Auditor-General 

Johannesburg 

31 July 2015 

AU DI TO R - GE NE R AL 

SOUTH AFRICA 

Auditing to build public confidence 
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Statement of responsibilit� 

The head of the trading entity is the chief executive officer 

appointed in terms of section 36(3J[b) of the Public Finance 

Management Act, Act 1 of 1999. 

The chief executive officer is responsible for the preparation, 

integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements 

and other financial information included in this report. In 

presenting the accompanying financial statements, Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) have been followed; 

applicable accounting assumptions have been used while 

prudent judgement and estimates within the requirements 

of the Public Finance Management Act, Act No 1 of 1999, as 

amended have been made. 

The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing 

the financial statements. The chief executive officer has 

no reason to believe that the company will not be a going 

Corporate gouernance report 

concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and 

available cash resources. The financial statements support 

the viability of the company. 

The financial statements are being audited by the Auditor

General, which was given unrestricted access to all financial 

records and related data. 

The annual financial statements on pages 89 to 108 were 

approved by the chief executive officer on 31 July 2015 and 

are signed on their behalf by: 

Acting chief executive officer 

The Dinokeng trading entity is a trading entity of the The Department of Economic Development and Gauteng 

Department of Economic Development. The accounting Tourism Authority provide corporate services in the areas of 

officer of the trading entity is the chief executive officer (CEO) human resource management and information technology 

for the Cradle of Humankind Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng management in terms of a service-level agreement. 

projects, reporting to the MEC for economic development. 

The CEO is supported by the chief director: Cradle of 

Humankind WHS and Dinokeng; chief financial officer; 

programme manager; and staff. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The trading entity operates in a complex multidisciplinary 

environment in collaboration and partnership with various 

agencies and stakeholder groupings. 

Audit Committee meetings took place regularly during the course of the financial year. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Internal audit tasks were performed by the Gauteng Department of Finance audit services based on the global risks 

identified by the senior management of the Dinokeng Project. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The senior management of the Dinokeng Project has identified its global risks and mapped the necessary control measures 

for these risks. Residual values have been computed for the identified risks on the basis of the probability of occurrence and 

the effectiveness of the control measures. The internal audit programme entails an audit of the identified global risks. 
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FRAUD PREVENTION 

Fraud has not been identified by senior management as a global risk for the Dinokeng Project due the strength of internal 

control processes. The fraud prevention plan of the Dinokeng trading entity has been implemented. 

Report of the Rudit Committee 

GAUTENG PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (GPG) 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - CLUSTER 01 

DINOKENG AND CRADLE OF HUMANKIND 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ATTENDANCE 

The Audit Committee consists of the external members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least two 

times per annum, as per the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 

Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter). six meetings were held during the current year, i.e. four meetings to consider 

the quarterly performance reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the annual 

financial statements and the Auditor-General of South Africa's (AGSA) audit and management reports. 

NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 

NAME OF MEMBER 

Mr Vishnu Naicker 

Mr Mandla Ncube 

Ms Masaccha Mbonambi 

Mr Wayne Poggenpoel 

Ms Tshidi Molala 

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

6 

4 (appointed 1 October 2014) 

5 (appointed 1 October 2014) 

1 (transferred to Cluster 05) 

1 (transferred to Cluster 02) 

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the 

Audit Committee: 

COMPULSORY ATTENDEES 

Ms Dawn Robertson (acting chief executive officer) 

Mr Yaseen Asmal (chief financial officer) 

Mr Matome Shotholo (acting chief risk officer) 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

5 

6 

6 

The Audit Committee noted that the accounting officer did not attend all the six scheduled Audit Committee meetings. 

However, letters of apology were tendered with duly authorised representatives attending on behalf of the CEO. The Audit 

Committee is therefore satisfied that the entities adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter in relation 

to ensuring that there is proper representation for the CEO. 
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The committee hereby also confirms that members of the Audit Committee met with senior management of the entity, 

internal audit and the Auditor-General, individually and collectively, to address risks and challenges facing the entity. A 

number of in-committee meetings were held to address control weaknesses and deviations within the entity. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

The Audit Committee confirms that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1 )(a) of the PFMA and 

Treasury Regulation 3.1.13, including the adoption of formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, and has 

regulated its activities in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 

TECHNOLOGY (ICT) GOVERNANCE 

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the entity has continued to improve during 

the year under review. Some deficiencies in the system of internal control and deviations were reported in the internal 

audit reports. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed progress with respect to ICT governance, in line with the ICT Framework issued by 

the Department of Public Service and Administration. Although there was significant progress on the ICT internal control, 

the Audit Committee together with management has identified priority areas for improvement in implementation of the 

Disaster Recovery Plan and the Business Continuity Plan. This continues to be a high risk for the entities. The entities 

implemented recommendations made by the Audit Committee. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Audit Committee was satisfied that the internal audit plan fairly represented assurance required in managing the risk 

profile and control environment of the of the entities, and identified a number of risk-based, mandatory, performance, 

computer and follow-up audits to be performed during the year. 

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the executive management, the 

AGSA and the internal audit function, which has strengthened the corporate governance initiatives within the entities. 

The Audit Committee still remains concerned about the available capacity and resourcing within the internal audit function, 

and acknowledges the initiatives that are currently under way to strengthen the unit. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Progress on entity risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee is 

satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving attention, although there are areas that still require improvement. 

Management should take full responsibility for the entire enterprise risk management process and continue to support the 

chief risk officer to even further enhance the performance of the entity. 

FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS 

No major forensic investigations were performed at the entities during the period under review. 

THE QUALITY OF QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF THE PFMA AND THE DIVISION OF 

REVENUE ACT 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared 

and submitted by the accounting officer of the entities during the year under review and confirms that the reports were in 

compliance with the statutory reporting framework. 



Dinokeng I Tourism Projects Annual Report 2014/15 

EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Audit Committee has: 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the AGSA and

the accounting officer

• Reviewed the audit report of the AGSA

• Reviewed the AGSA's management report and management's response thereto

• Reviewed the entity's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions

• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA's conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of the 

opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA. 

ONE-ON-ONE MEETING WITH THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

The Audit Committee has met with the accounting officer for the entities to address unresolved issues. 

ONE-ON-ONE MEETINGS WITH THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

The Audit Committee has met with the executive authority for the entities to apprise the MEC on the performance of the entities. 

AUDITOR-GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA 

The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

CONCLUSION 

The committee, together with management, remains committed to making exponential improvement in the coming financial 

year, which should form the basis for maintaining these two entities· unqualified audit opinion with no significant matter on 

matters of compliance and performance information. The committee wishes to express its appreciation to the MEC and all 

other stakeholders for their contributions during the year. 

Mr Vishnu Naicker 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

31 July 2015 
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Report of the accounting officer 

REVIEW OF THE DINOKENG PROJECT 

In February 2015 MEG Mr Lebogang Maile announced 

through the Board and the CEO a final decision on the 

outstanding merger of the Gauteng Tourism Authority 

(GTA]. Cradle of Humankind Site (GOH WHSJ and Dinokeng 

Project, following the earlier directive to merge the 

operations of these three entities. In essence, the resolution 

was to reconfigure the aforesaid entities so that the GTA 

focuses primarily and exclusively on destination promotion 

and marketing in the quest to enhance its efficiencies. 

This decision effectively removes destination management 

responsibilities from the GTA and locates them within the 

new Department of Economic Department (OED) tourism 

branch, which the Cradle of Humankind Site and Dinokeng 

form part of. 

During the latter part of the 2014/15 financial year, the 

Cradle of Humankind Site reprioritised and realigned its 

plans to the DED's mandate and vision for the fifth term 

of democratic governance to act decisively, boldly and 

unapologetically to radically transform, industrialise and 

modernise Gauteng's economy, through the following 

provincial 10-pillar programme: 

1. Radical economic transformation

2. Decisive spatial transformation

3. Accelerated social transformation

4. Transformation of the state and governance

5. Modernisation of the public service

6. Modernisation of the economy

7. Modernisation of human settlements and

urban development

8. Modernisation of public transport infrastructure

9. Reindustrialisation of Gauteng province

10. Taking the lead in Africa's new industrial revolution

A cluster approach has been adopted towards the effective 

delivery of the TMR programme. The economic cluster 

led by the OED is responsible for the five outputs that are 

in bold; the social cluster drives outputs 3 (accelerated 

social transformation) and 7 (modernisation of human 

settlements and urban development); the governance 

and planning cluster delivers on outputs 2 (decisive 

spatial transformation), 4 (transformation of the state and 

governance) and 5 (modernisation of the public service!. 

The department seeks to achieve this through: 

• Providing an enabling policy and legislative

environment for equitable economic growth and

development, and

• Developing and implementing programmes and

projects that will:

o Revitalise Gauteng's township economies

o Build new smart, green, knowledge-based

economies and industries

o Ensure decent employment and inclusion in key

economic sectors

o Facilitate radical economic transformation,

modernisation and reindustrialisation.

o Include the marginalised sectors of women,

youth and persons with disabilities in mainstream

economic activities

o Establish appropriate partnerships for delivery

o Ensure the OED effectively and efficiently delivers

on its mandate

Among the many challenges we plan to tackle head on are: 

• The control and dominance that monopolies have of

our economy

• The persistently high levels of income inequality

between managers and other staff and between white

headed households and black-headed households

• Economic development disparities that have resulted

from the previous apartheid government's spatial and

racial policies and plans

• The unacceptable levels of unemployment and poverty

• Removing the obstacles to investment and doing

business in Gauteng

• Increasing the viability and success of SMMEs, township

entrepreneurs and cooperatives

• Access to financial resources by informal traders

• The need to develop and maintain strategic

infrastructure that can support and grow

economic activities

Says MEG Maile: "The programme of action for this term 

of office is geared at altering the deep-seated structural 

challenges that continue to confront our province, 

especially in the economic arena. The next five years will 

be defined by radical measures to encourage investment in 

economic and social infrastructure investment; support for 

new sectors of growth such as JCT and the green economy; 

the revitalisation of manufacturing and localisation to spur 

industrialisation; transformation of the rural economic 

landscape and integration of smallholder farmers into the 

food supply chain of key and high-value food commodities; 

and the deliberate empowerment of small business and 

cooperatives located in our townships." 

The implementation of projects during the 2014/15 financial 

year must be viewed within the context of the developments 

outlined above. In terms of non-financial oerformance. the 
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Dinokeng Project achievement stood at 66. 7% (Dinokeng 

has achieved six of the nine targets), with the balance of 

33.3% of the projects being at various stages of completion. 

Through our sustained sound relations with other 

government departments, we have also managed to 

clear 206km of alien vegetation in the Dinokeng area in 

accordance with our plans. In the process of executing this 

Working on Fire project, as many as 51 temporary jobs were 

created in the Dinokeng Game Reserve. A further 51 jobs 

were maintained in partnership with the Dinokeng Game 

Reserve Management Association (DGRMA). The target of 37 

was exceeded by 14 as the DGRMA had to appoint additional 

staff for security purposes such as anti-poaching measures 

and for the self-drive route project phase 1. 

In speaking about the self-drive route project, 66km have 

been developed within the Dinokeng Game Reserve. This 

project is aimed at ensuring visitors to the reserve have the 

option of viewing at their own leisure, and this is aimed at 

contributing to the revenue generated by the DGR. Of most 

importance, it should be noted that the projects envisaged 

along the self-drive route will be community-owned and 

-run projects, such as the picnic site and the viewing deck.

It is envisaged that this will empower members of the

community to run small businesses and also create jobs

Five cooperatives were supported in terms of business 

skills, trade and mentorship training as part of this 

community-beneficiation initiative. This initiative is aimed 

at assisting beneficiaries within the community to hone 

crafting skills and equip them with business skills to 

participate in the market. 

The targets not achieved are: 

In terms of the number of hectares expanded in the DGR by 

March 2015, the expansion of the DGR was limited to only 

1 630ha due the fact that the finalisation of the share model 

took longer than anticipated, and some of the negotiations 

met with resistance. 

In respect of the number of trusts registered to facilitate 

community development projects/interventions for the DGR, 

the service provider was not appointed to facilitate the set

up and registration of the trust. 

In respect of the number of feasibility studies undertaken 

for the Roodeplaat Dam development project by March 

2015, expression of interests (EOI) results were poor - and 

as a result the initially planned PPP model could not be 

proceeded with. An environmental management plan was 

then identified as alternative model, and was going to assist 

with first understanding the sensitivity of the area. Bids 

were solicited in December 2014 but proposals received 

were outside of the available budget of R500 OOO. This 

project will now be undertaken in the coming financial 

year and the service provider will be sought through an 

open bid process 

As indicated above, the overall performance percentage 

for the period under review was 66. 7% in terms of hard 

numbers - six out of nine indicators. Only three targets can 

be confirmed as having not been achieved: the expansion of 

the Dinokeng Game Reserve, the registration of a trust to 

facilitate community projects, and the feasibility study for 

the Roodeplaat Dam. 

Good news in terms of the expansion of the DGR is that 

negotiations to incorporate pieces of land from GaMashong 

Matlala and Rust de Winter Conservancy (both totalling 

4 OOOha) and the Boveneind Groenfontein (1 OOOha) are at 

a very advanced stage. In respect of the feasibility study 

for the Roodeplaat Dam, the project has been postponed to 

the 2015/16 year with the intention of dedicating a greater 

budget to ensure that this project takes place. 

FUTURE PLANS AND ACTION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

The plans for the 2015/16 financial year in Cullinan include 

the development of three gateways and an approximately 

800m walking trail that will anchor the Cullinan Outdoor 

Mining Museum in line with the Cullinan economic model 

that was developed as a guide to the development of the 

Cullinan hub. In Roodeplaat, the Dinokeng Project plans to 

develop a model for the development of an anti-chemical 

and -biological warfare museum. The museum will create 

a platform to tell a story about the impact and effects of 

chemical warfare on humanity. 

DGR will continue with negotiations to facilitate written 

commitments and to consolidate fragmented pieces into 

ecological and economical viable units for incorporation 

with extended infrastructure. 

The management obligations as contained in the 

memorandum of understanding with the military regarding 

the incorporation of their proclaimed nature reserve into 

the DGR will continue. 

The implementation of the environmental management 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve unit will be establishing the plan (EMP) for the DGR will continue with the support 

second phase of the self-drive route project, which involves provided to the game management committee through 

a number of community-beneficiation projects. The Working scientific decision support and compliance with 

on Fire project, which employs 51 people, will proceed with environmental legislation. 
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The public participation and community benefits (PPCB) 

unit will continue to work to support the cooperatives 

established by the Dinokeng Project in the project area 

as a community-beneficiation project, including providing 

trading space, training, mentoring and coaching. The 

Department of Basic Education has made available the 

Klipdrift Primary School to the Dinokeng Project for use for 

community-beneficiation projects, and a number of such 

projects will be identified and implemented together with 

the Community Development Trust, which is planned to be 

established in the coming financial year. The PPCB unit will 

continue to ensure inclusive economic activities and the 

participation of the local communities in the project. 

BRIEF COMMENTARY ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The total funds received for the 2014/15 financial year amounted to R37. 7-million. This resulted in a total expenditure at 

the end of the 2014/15 financial year of R33.6-million, including an amount of R4-million for payment to the Dinokeng Game 

Reserve Management Authority for operational losses. There was a bank balance of R22.8-million at 31 March 2015. A rollover 

application to the amount of R3-million will be made to finance commitments. Included in the bank balance of R 22.8-million is 

R9.3-million; this amount was not utilised in operations and thus this will be refunded to the Provincial Revenue Fund. 

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There were no events of significance after the reporting date. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The continued perseverance and dedication of staff and key stakeholders both within and outside the public sector is 

acknowledged in the accomplishments of the Dinokeng Project over the last year. The organisation will continue to provide 

and maintain a high level of service in coordination with these key internal and external stakeholders. 

CONCLUSION 

The Dinokeng Project is still on track in terms of delivering on the strategic goals highlighted in the master plan for the 

area, as highlighted by some of the key achievements mentioned here. However, better processes and ways of handling and 

negating the challenges encountered during the current year will be sought as part of the integration of the trading entity with 

the department. 

Ms D Robertson 

Acting chief executive officer 

Dinokeng Project 
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Statement of financial performance 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Note 
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31 Mar 2015 
R'OOO 

31 Mar 2014 
R'OOO 

Transfers" . . . . :. ,,. . . .• _
39 11,5 32 963 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2 37 736 32 963 

Other Income 2.1 1 409 

Tot;ilexJ)endilure 3 l3361L) (41264) 

Administrative expenses 

Staff cost 

Other operaUng expenses 

Subsidy paid 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 

Statement of financial position 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015 

Note 

Non>current ·ass ts 

Property, plant and equipment 

16 

4 I 

(13 102) 

(12 543) 

(3 936) 

(4 031) 

5 533 

31 Mar 2015 
R'OOO 

84 

(9 855) 

(11 347) 

(11 808) 

(8 254) 

(8 301) 

31 Mar 2014 
R'OOO 

132 

Cu,renlassels 22850 24847 

Loans and receivables 6 48 25 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 22 802 24 821 

Total assets 22 934 24978 

Accumulated surplus 10 006 13 846 

. . 

Trade and other payables 7 3 263 1 746 

Trade and other payables non-exchange 7.3 9 373 

Provisions 8 292 9 386 

Total equity and liabilities 22 934 24 978 
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Statement of changes in equit\:J 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Note Accumulated surplus/(deficitl 

R'OOO 

Total 

R'OOO 

Balance as al 1 April 2013 28 909 28 909 

Prior period error 17 

Balance as at 1 April 2013 restated 

Deficit for that year 

Balance as at 31 March 2014 

Surplus for the year 

Surrender to Provincial Treasury 

Balance as at 31 March 2015 

Statement of cash flow 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Note 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Cash receipts from customers 

Cash paid to suppliers 

Surrender overpayment of transfer to DED 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow generated by operation 9 

Cash flow from investing activities 

Investment 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash outflow from investment activities 

Net ldecrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

39 145 

131 988) 

19 176) 

(2 019) 

12 019) 

24 821 

22 802 

16 762) 

22 147 

18 301) 

13 846 

5 533 

19 373) 

10 006 

16 762) 

22 147 

18 301) 

13 846 

5 533 

19 373) 

10 006 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

42 139 

143 753) 

(1 614) 

(1 614) 

26 435 

24 821 
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Recounting policies for the �ear ended 31 March 2[115 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Dinokeng is a trading entity of the Gauteng Department of Economic Development. The Dinokeng is governed by the 

policies and procedures of the OED and its financial statements are accounted for in terms of the Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) as from 1 April 2013 ., The Dinokeng Trading Entity is audited by the Auditor

General and has to comply with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999). 

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have been 

consistently app[jed to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements have been prepared in of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 19991, and the Treasury 

compliance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Regulations issued. 

Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in accordance with the 

following policies, which have been applied consistently in These annual financial statements have been prepared on 

all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 

where appropriate and meaningful, additional information historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. 

has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the 

financial statements and to comply with the statutory A summary of the significant accounting policies, which 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

The following GRAP Standards have been applied in the annual financial statements: 

REFERENCE 

GRAP 1 

GRAP2 

GRAP3 

GRAP4 

GRAP 5 

GRAP6 

GRAP 7 

GRAP8 

GRAP 9 

GRAP10 

GRAP 11 

GRAP12 

GRAP13 

GRAP14 

GRAP16 

GRAP17 

GRAP19 

GRAP 21 

GRAP 23 

GRAP 24 

GRAP 25 

GRAP 26 

GRAP 31 

TOPIC 

Presentation of financial statements (as revised in 201 OJ 

Cash flow statements (as revised in 2010) 

Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors (as revised in 2010) 

The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (as revised in 201 OJ 

Borrowing costs 

Consolidated and separate financial statements 

Investments in associates 

Interests in joint ventures 

Revenue from exchange transactions (as revised in 2010) 

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies (as revised in 2010) 

Construction contracts (as revised in 2010) 

Inventories (as revised in 2010) 

Leases (as revised in 2010) 

Events after the reporting date (as revised in 201 OJ 

Investment property (as revised in 2010) 

Property, plant and equipment (as revised in 2010) 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (as revised in 2010) 

Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes and transfers) 

Presentation of budget information in financial statements 

Employee benefits 

Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Intangible assets 



GRAP 100 

GRAP 104 
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Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (as revised in 201 OJ 

Financial instruments 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GRAP requires the use of some critical accounting estimates. 

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas that 

required judgement in the process of application are disclosed in policy note 2.2. 

The financial statements of the Dinokeng trading entity have been prepared on a going-concern basis. 

Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the minister of finance has not yet determined an effective date: 

these accounting standards have been considered (where applicable) in the formulation of the accounting policies: 

GRAP 18 - Segment reporting: effective 1 April 2015 

The standard requires the identification and aggregation of the operating segments of the entity into reportable segments. 

For each of the reportable segments identified details of the financial performance and financial position will be disclosed. 

At this stage entities are not required to implement it or even to formulate any accounting policy. 

GRAP 20 - Related parties - no effective date 

This standard provides the requirements for the disclosure of related parties and transactions and balances with related 

parties. The current accounting practice of the entity for related disclosures is aligned to this standard. Accordingly it is not 

expected that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the financial statements of the entity. 

GRAP 32 - Service concession arrangements: grantor - no effective date 

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the granter, a public 

entity. PPP agreements are arrangements that fall within the scope of this standard. This standard, once effective, will have 

an impact on the when PPP arrangements are entered into. 

GRAP 108 - Statutory receivables - no effective date 

Statutory receivables are receivables that: 

(a) arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means; and

(b) require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Accordingly, it is not expected that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the financial statements of 

the entity. The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time once it becomes effective. 

GRAP 17 - Interpretation of the standard of GRAP on service concession arrangements 

where a grantor controls a significant residual interest in an asset - no effective date 

This interpretation provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered into a service concession arrangement, but only 

controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual interest in a service concession 

asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease. Accordingly it is not expected 

that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the financial statements of the entity. The entity expects to 

adopt the standard for the first time once it becomes effective. 

Directive 11 - Changes in measurement basis following the initial adoption of standards 
of GRAP 

Th" nhi,,rtiv" nf thic; rlir,,rtiv" ic: tn n"rmit ;:mv "ntitv tn rh:,nn" itc: m":,c;11r"m"nt h:,c;,,c; fnllnwinn th" initi:,I :,rlnntinn nf 
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accounting estimates and errors. This directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on 

accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors. In applying paragraph 13b of the Standard of GRAP on 

accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors, this directive allows the entity, that initially adopted the 

fair value model for investment property or revaluation model for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets or 

heritage assets to change its accounting policy choice on the initial adoption of the Standard of GRAP. 

Subsequent to the adoption of this directive, an entity will be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods 

subject to it meeting the requirements in the Standard of GRAP on accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 

errors. 

1.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURE 

The Dinokeng trading entity has prepared its financial statements in compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 

Board (ASB). as from 1 April 2013. In previous financial years the entity prepared the financial statements in compliance 

with SA GAAP. 

1.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African rand (ZAR), which is also the functional currency 

of the entity. 

1.4 ROUNDING 

Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been rounded to the nearest one thousand [R'OOO). 

1.5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management the application of judgement is inherent in the formation 

is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 

the amounts represented in the annual financial statements these estimates, which may be material to the annual 

and related disclosures. Use of available information and financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

1.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the reporting 

date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at 

year-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

1.7 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

The Dinokeng trading entity reviews the carrying amounts of impairment, if any. 

its tangible and intangible assets at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets The recoverable amount of an asset, or cash-generating 

are impaired. unit, is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 

value in use. 

If an indication is identified, the Dinokeng trading entity 

estimates the recoverable amount or recoverable service 

For cash-generating assets, value in use is assessed by 

discounting the estimated future cash flows generated by 
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reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

For non-cash-generating assets, value in use, which is the 

present value of the asset's remaining service potential, 

is determined by using the depreciated replacement cost 

approach. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost 

to replace the asset's gross service potential. This cost 

is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. 

An asset may be replaced either through reproduction 

(replication] of the existing asset or through replacement 

of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement 

cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement 

cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated 

depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to 

reflect the already consumed or expired service potential 

of the asset. 

If the recoverable amount or recoverable service 

amount of an asset, or cash-generating unit, is determined 

to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 

of the asset, or cash-generating unit, is reduced to its 

recoverable amount or recoverable service amount. The 

related impairment is recognised as an expense in 

surplus or deficit. 

Where a change in the underlying circumstances 

indicates that a previously recognised impairment 

has subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the 

asset, or cash-generating unit, is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount or recoverable service 

amount. Such reversal is limited to the carrying amount 

that would have been determined had no impairment been 

recognised for the asset, or cash-generating unit. The 

related reversal of the impairment is recognised in 

surplus or deficit. 

1.8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic 

benefits or service potential associated with the item will 

flow to the Dinokeng trading entity and the cost or fair value 

of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment are measured initially 

at cost. 

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are 

stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of 

financial performance during the financial period in which 

they are incurred. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets 

to residual values over their expected useful lives using the 

straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

1.9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Dinokeng trading entity classifies its financial 

instruments based on the purpose for which the 

financial instruments were acquired. Management 

determines the classification of its financial instruments 

at initial recognition. 

The Dinokeng trading entity recognises a financial 

instrument in its statement of financial position when 

it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. Financial instruments are measured initially at 
f;:air v::iill1iP inrl11rlinn tr::.n�;:artinn rnc:tc: 

• Computer equipment: 4-7 years

• Office equipment: 5-10 years

• Office furniture: 5-10 years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation 

methods are reviewed annually and adjustments are made 

if appropriate. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately 

to its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount 

if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated 

recoverable amount or recoverable service amount. 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 

the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised 

in the statement of financial performance. 

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are 

accounted for at trade date. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 

method, less accumulated impairment losses. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost, using the effective 

interest method. 
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A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

• The right to receive cash flows from the asset

has expired

• The Dinokeng trading entity retains the right to

receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without delay to a third

party under a "pass through" arrangement

• The Dinokeng trading entity has transferred its rights

to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, or (bi has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset

A financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation 

under the Liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, a 

gain or Loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 

financial instrument is derecognised, and through the 

amortisation process. 

A financial asset and a financial Liability are only offset and 

the net amount presented in the statement of financial 

position when the Dinokeng trading entity currently has a 

1.10 RECEIVABLES 

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method, Less provision for impairment. 

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 

established when there is objective evidence that the 

Dinokeng trading entity will not be able to collect all 

amounts due according to the original terms of the 

receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, 

probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are 

considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. 

The amount of the provision is the difference between the 

asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows, discounted at the original effective 

Legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts 

and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset and settle the Liability simultaneously. 

The statement of financial position includes financial assets 

classified as financial assets at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative 

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. They are included 

in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 

months after the reporting date. These are classified as 

non-current assets. The Dinokeng trading entity financial 

assets at amortised cost comprise "receivables" and "cash 

and cash equivalents" in the statement of financial position. 

Details included in note 2.11 and 2.12 respectively. 

The statement of financial position includes financial 

Liabilities classified as financial Liabilities at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are non-derivative 

financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. The Dinokeng trading 

entity's financial Liabilities at amortised cost comprise 

trade payables in the statement of financial position. Details 

included in note 2.13. 

interest rate. The impairment is provided for by reducing 

the carrying amount of the asset directly and is recognised 

in the statement of financial performance. 

Impairment Losses are reversed when an increase in 

the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related 

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 

was recognised, subject to the restriction that the 

carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the 

impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying 

amount would have been had the impairment not been 

recognised. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 

written off are reversed directly and recognised in the 

statement of financial performance. 
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1.11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance and petty 

cash held. 

Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at fair 

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method. 

Interest earned on the bank balance does not accrue to 

the Dinokeng trading entity but to the revenue fund of the 

Gauteng provincial government. 

1.12 TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade payables comprise accruals for services that have 

been acquired in the ordinary course of business. 

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and 

subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 

rate method. 

1.13 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 

The accounting policy in terms of the compensation 

of employees is in line with the policy of the Gauteng 

Department of Economic Development, and is as follows: 

a. Short-term employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are expensed in

the statement of financial performance in the year in which

they occur.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present or 

constructive obligation are recognised and disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements. This is Limited to a Leave 

pay accrual as set out in note 7.2. 

Salaries and wages shown in the statement of financial 

performance comprise payments to employees (including 

Leave entitlements, 13th cheque and performance bonuses]. 

b. Post-retirement benefits 

Employer contributions are expensed in the statement of

financial performance.

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial 
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statements of the Dinokeng trading entity, or in the financial statements of the parent department. Any potential liabilities 

are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Funds and not in the financial statements of the employer 

department. This policy is in line with the Gauteng Department of Economic Development policy. 

c. Termination benefits 

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance.

d. Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits [such as capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in the statement of

financial performance.

1.14 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Compensation paid to key management personnel is included in the disclosure for related parties. 

1.15 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

An exchange transaction is one in which the Dinokeng trading entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities 

extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value [primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the 

other party in exchange. 

The Dinokeng trading entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable 

that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity. 

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is 

impaired, the Dinokeng trading entity reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future 

cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as 

interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate. 

1.16 TRANSFER PAYMENTS (REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE 

TRANSACTIONS) 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not 

exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, the 

Dinokeng trading entity either receives value from another 

party without directly giving approximately equal value in 

exchange, or gives value to another party without directly 

receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

As the Dinokeng trading entity satisfies a present 

obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow 

of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised 

as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 

recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to 

that reduction. 

Revenue received from transfer payments and donations 

are recognised as revenue to the extent that the Dinokeng 

trading entity has complied with any of the criteria, 

conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To 

the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have 

not been met, a liability is recognised. 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises the 

fair value of a transfer payment received or receivable 

from the Gauteng Department of Economic Development. 

Transfer payments are recognised as revenue, except to 

the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of 

the same inflow, when the right to receive such grants is 

established and there is reasonable assurance that the 

Dinokeng trading entity will comply with the stipulations 

attached to it. 

The Dinokeng trading entity received a transfer payment 

from the Gauteng Department of Economic Development to 

fund its operating expenditure, which is recognised in full 

as revenue. 
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1.17 COMMITMENTS 

Contracted commitments (except for the lease of the building) to be paid after 1 April 2014 are not recognised in the 

statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance, but are included in 

the disclosure notes. 

These commitments are linked to specific service delivery contracts and are payable in future years. 

1.18 KEY AREAS OF JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following key areas of judgement were required in 

preparation of the financial statements: 

• The estimated useful lives of assets are based on their

expected useful lives and are measured against the

industry norms

• Residual values of assets for the year amount to nil, as

the residual values are deemed insignificant in relation 

to the value of the assets 

• Establishment costs of the Dinokeng trading entity have

been expensed, in accordance with previous years, as

no future benefits would flow to the Dinokeng trading

entity due to the fund establishment being stopped, as a

result of the change in mandate

1.19 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance according 

to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. If 

the expenditure is recoverable it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off 

as irrecoverable. 

1.20 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the relevant authority does 

not condone the expenditure it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable. 

1.21 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the trading entity has a present legal or constructive obligation 

as a result of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The entity does not recognise a contingent asset 

and contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements. 

1.22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS 

The Dinokeng trading entity's activities expose it to some 

financial risks, most of which are managed through 

procurement and payments being done through the Shared 

Services Division within the Gauteng Department of Finance. 

The Dinokeng trading entity did not have direct access 

to its bank account, and thus cash management was not 

performed at the Dinokeng trading entity but at OED. 

Risk management is carried out and monitored by a central 

team within the Gauteng Provincial Treasury under policies 

approved by the head of department. 

for overall risk management, as well as written policies 

covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, 

interest rate risk and credit risk, as well as guidelines on 

investment of excess liquidity. As a trading entity of the 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development, these 

principles apply to the Dinokeng trading entity. 

The most significant financial risks are related to reporting 

(inaccurate financial information that might result in 

inaccurate reporting and not meeting reporting deadlines in 

terms of PFMA) and financial systems (payment systems not 

alianed to business orocec;c;ec;l. The risk nf rennrtinn w;:ic; 
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package, enabling the Dinokeng trading entity to record 

financial information on an accrual basis, as opposed to 

the modified cash basis run by its parent department. 

a. Market risk

Fair value interest-rate risk 

The Dinokeng trading entity has an interest-bearing 

asset, being the rental deposit. Interest is earned and 

capitalised every year at a rate of prime minus 2%, 

compounded annually in arrears. 

Exposure to market interest rates is limited to interest 

earned on the rental deposit and to interest payable on 

late settlement of accounts, which is governed by the 30-

day payment period of the GPG. 

b. Credit risk

Credit risk was managed on a departmental basis.

Although the Dinokeng trading entity did have its

own bank account, the Gauteng Provincial Treasury

performed cash management and deposits with banks

and financial institutions.

The interest-bearing rental deposit is governed by the 

contractual agreement that all interests accrue at prime 

less 2% at the end of each year. Interest accrued is added 

to the deposit and becomes payable at the date of return 

of the deposit. 

Maximum exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting 

date is the carrying value of each financial asset 

mentioned in note 13. 

Trade and other receivables pledged as security 

The Dinokeng trading entity does not hold any collateral 

as security. 

Credit quality of financial assets neither past due 

nor impaired 

The credit quality of both financial assets is high. With 

DED being the parent department of Dinokeng trading 

entity, the financial asset [debt) can be offset against 

future refund payments for salary payments. [Dinokeng 

trading entity refunds WORLD HERITAGE SITE on a 

monthly basis for salaries paid on its behalf.) 

The deposit and interest capitalised can be offset against 

future rental payments. 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is 

as follows: the deposit and capitalised interest is not 

yet payable. 

c. Liquidity risk

For the Dinokeng trading entity, prudent Liquidity risk

management implies maintaining sufficient cash to meet

its commitments. To a certain extent, DED through its

cash management programme covered this. However,

the Dinokeng trading entity had the responsibility to

limit spending and commitment of funds to the approved

budget/transfer payment.
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Notes to the annual financial statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

2 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

Transfer payment received 

Refund to OED 

Total 

Refund to OED, refer to note 

2.1 OTHER INCOME 

Interest received 

Note 

8.2 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

37 736 

37 736 

1 409 

3 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING 

EXPENDITURE: 

Marketing cost 

Technical and consulting services 

Auditors· remuneration 

Short-term employee benefits 

Pension and medical costs 

Other operating expenditure 

Rental expense 

Security 

Cleaning 

Telephone and data lines 

Electricity and water 

Maintenance and repair 

Waste and sewer 

Subsidy paid 

Loss on disposal of asset 

L 

31 Mar2015 

R'OOO 

9 007 

3 460 

433 

11 330 

1 213 

485 

2 260 

190 

188 

110 

391 

452 

14 

4 031 

5 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

42 139 

[9 1761 

32 963 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

6 414 

11 234 

441 

11 347 

10 120 I 

1 227 

318 

2 059 

144 

143 

775 

8 254 

2 

I It "JL I 
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Office equipment 
R'OOO 

Computer equipment 
R'OOO 

Total 
R'OOO 

..... h �., .... .. ., ·,�. ""' -.:z�,.::-.-:.,,... ... "��'!""'���-,,....,.:,.,. "';'"·--:.,,, ,-�.,,,, ... i · ·-,,,� , - � - -�<� 

Net hook value at 31,Marclr2014. ·; ·: '.;i"'.:·"--· "·-·". :' 12 120 '132, 
Made up a5 follows: , · . · ·, · .... :� ·::, · .. , · . . , 

Cost price 

Disposal 

• • '"'"''' < -"· ..,.,. ,-.,c.� 'I' � • • 

24 

Accumulated depreciation (12) 

622 

(25) 

(476) 

646 

(25) 

(488) 

Netbookvalue at31 March2014 12 120 132 

Balance at 1 April 2014 12 120 132 

Loss on disposal (5) (51 

Depreciation at 31 March 2015 (5) (38) (43) 

Net book value ;it 31 March 2015 7 77 84 
Made up ac; follows: 

Cost price 24 596 620 

Disposal: cost (157) (157)

Cost at 31 March 2015 24 439 463 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2014 (12) (476) (488) 

Disposal: accumulated depreciation 152 152 

Depreciation at 31 March 2015 (5) (38) (43) 
!W �-�1".�¥���;�:��A:',,*�"--'- -v ��-f+:.,:.l;,c�i-w-?-ffe,_,:.r.w��·vd ,_. ... 

Accumulated Depreciation at:31:March,20,15�"'; �--··'" .• };�;· · • :117) · · ·• " (362) !379) 
'"""'' - ,. ��/ � "' - - "'����.,,.;.,,_..,,tt.c< ,.. < , 

') --;, ,, "" Y��<< �"- .... ;,�\4-�-� ��,.,._...-z,po,-.,...J'�"°';t,� ·--,-,;. "'- • 

• Net book ·value at 31 Mar.'2015 ·:�--. ;.',:.�:::.-:' ·" · ' : � ·
7 77 84

. ,,.. �' ........ , - , . .  

5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Bank 

Petty cash 

Total 

31 Mar2015 
R'OOO 

22 799 

3 

22 802 

31 Mar 2014 
R'OOO 

24 820 

24 821 
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6 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 

Employees 

Ex-employees 

Inter entity 

Total 

7 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Trade payables 

Inter entity 

Staff accruals 

Other 

Total 

Opening balance 

Provision utilised in current year 

Leave pay provision made during the year 

Closing balance 

7.2 Trade and other payables non-exchange 

Trade payables - Surrender to Treasury 

Notes 

7.1 

This payable relates to the surrender of retentions that were not approved 
by Treasury 

8 PROVISIONS 

Opening balance 

Provision utilised in current year 

Unused provision 

Performance bonus provision made during the year 

Closing balance 

8.2 Surrender to OED 

Total provisions 

- -

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

12 

36 

48 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

2 620 

43 

598 

2 

3 263 

85 

(85) 

598 

598 

9 373 

31 Mar2015 

R'OOO 

210 

(145) 

65 

227 

292 

292 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

24 

25 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

1 607 

54 

85 

1 746 

�u..,., • ""
= 

""'.""."S."<»�-*"' 
,,, . 

186 

(186) 

85 

85 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

172 

(172] 

210 

210 

9 386 
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9 RECONCILIATION OF CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Surplus/(deficitl before tax 

31Mar2015 
R'OOO 

5 533 

Non-cash movcmcnt�/working capital changes .,.,,.:;_,,.,,,,,fit+,,:/ l7,-!:i52l.:, 
...._., � >f ./lc  "'" �> ... '�� , ._W !li,;1.,,,"i 

Depreciation 43 

lncrease/(decreasel in payables 10 890 

Decrease in work in progress 

Surrender to Provincial Treasury (9 3731 

lncrease/[decrease) in provision (9 0941 

[lncreasel/decrease in receivables (231 

Loss on disposal of asset 5 

Net cash flows from operating activities (2 019) 

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The related party relationships, transactions and balances as listed below exist. 

31 Mar 2014 
R'OOO 

(8 3011 

133 

(7 3131 

4 654 

9 214 

(41 

3 

(1 614) 

'*-· -=•'J.::�"tti;"..Jt, , ":tf:l,i -:�"'fr'hi,,;;;,-;::::-,.�#'J'�,;�,�?',A,-��:,1.<.\(,.,,:"�i'<-<" .. ,,�.,,..- "',''70_;:;:,i ,$ '"'__.I!*,-� , '"""""'?'17�, .,.,,..,u����:-r- ..-..,u, __ � - �''•',"'
"
,.a
s-9", 

} 1,Marcl") 2015 , . ·_ · · . _;> ,,. · . : : 'Total transaction for Balances lcred1tor) 
;,,' ,,,,:.-,::::)',_ ','.'/ . ·_ .. ; .. :s:� .... :::::�;;:£:2"-,;.:'."" :,;�,;,;. .• ::k_,. ___ , _,"-·----,� ,,,·:«•::��---.t�1,c.11t�! . ,,, . , de_b_t9,1

:-

' 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 37 736 

Cradle of Humankind trading entity 14 985 (71 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 907 

31 March 2014 

Cradle of Humankind trading entity 15 676 (541 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 42 139 19 1761 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 840 

RELATIONSHIP WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development to create a viable and attractive geospatial tourism 
The Gauteng Department of Economic Development is the destination in an area that will result in economic growth. 
mother department of the Dinokeng Game Reserve. The 
above transactions relate to the voted funds allocated to the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) 
entity to implement its strategic objectives Dinokeng and the GTA are fellow entities administered 

under the Department of Economic Development. Dinokeng 
Cradle of Humankind Site performs collaborative marketing activities with the GTA as 
Dinokeng and Cradle are sister trading entities per the direction of the MEC. GTA also provides corporate 
administered under Department of Economic Development services to COH WHS 
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10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Key management personnel 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, chief executive officers and other senior management. 

cn1ef executive officer. 

Robertson D 501 501 

Othe� senio� management 

Asmal Y 406 406 

Tlebere K 447 58 9 87 37 638 

Sathekge M 354 46 190 590 

Chettiar S 300 39 12 149 500 

Pillay M 268 35 3 118 23 447 

Layton N 269 35 3 118 53 478 

Amod A 304 39 17 49 25 434 

Sefoko NM 198 26 61 5 290 

Grand total 3 047 278 44 772 143 4 284 

Robertson D 464 464 

Asmal Y 376 376 

Tlebere K 458 55 9 82 604 

Sathekge M 325 42 175 542 

Chettiar S 253 33 8 128 24 446 

Pillay M 270 32 3 110 24 439 

Layton N 270 32 3 110 24 439 

AmodA 300 36 16 43 395 

Grand total 2 716 230 39 648 72 3 705 

The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng trading entity and the 
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11 COMMITMENTS 

Commitments in respect of capital and research cost not accrued at the reporting date: 

Contracted for 

Not contracted for 

Total 

This expenditure will be funded from approved voted funds. 

Within one year 

Thereafter 

Total 

12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

403 

403 

403 

403 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

9 991 

9 991 

9 991 

9 991 

At 31 March 2015, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and the approximate fair 

values due to short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities as disclosed below: 

Financial instruments summarised as follows: 

Fair value 

Loans and receivables 48 48 

Cash and cash equivalents 22 802 22 802 

Total 22 850 22 850 

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 12 636 12 636 

Provision 292 292 

Total 12 928 12 928 

Loans and receivables 25 25 

Cash and cash equivalents 24 821 24 821 

Total 24 846 24 846 
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED) 

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Provision 

Total 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

1 746 

9 386 

11 132 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

1 746 

9 386 

11 132 

RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The chief executive officer has approved and monitored the risk management processes, including cash flow management 

and reporting structures in relation to the management of financial instruments risk. 

These risks, and the way they are managed, are detailed below. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity 

risk management within the entity focuses on working capital management, cash balances and cash flow planning, coupled 

with liquidity support arrangements with the Department of Economic Development. 

The table below analyses the entity's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 

the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 

undiscounted cash flows. 

Trade and other payables exchange 2 665 

Trade and other payables non-exchange 9 373 

Leave pay 50 200 348 

Provisions 292 

2014 Not later than one Later than one month Later than three 

Trade and other payables 

Leave pay 

Provisions 

Credit risk 

The entity's financial assets are trade and other receivables 

and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk 

that a counterparty will default on its obligations in respect 

of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk 

as it does not charge a fee for the service that it provides. 

The balance of receivable relates to the intercompany 

balance between the entity and Cradle of Humankind Site. 

month and not later than months and not later 

6 950 

7 

Market risk 

three months than one year 

28 50 

210 

This is the risk that financial instrument fair values will 

fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. 

The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not have any 

financial instruments whose value might be influenced by 

changes in market prices. The entity's financial instruments 

are only receivables and payables between the entity and its 
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13 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The entity is liable for a contingent liability resulting from certain employees who have capped leave. These employees are 

entitled to a maximum of five days of leave in each year from their capped leave. The amount is paid on the occurrence of 

future events that are not merely controlled by the entity. It is paid upon death, retirement and when an employee resigns; 

the entity is not liable for payment. 

Capped leave 

Total 

14 OTHER DISCLOSURE 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

5 3  

53 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

49 

49 

14.1 MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND 

WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Opening balance 

Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure condoned 

Total 

31Mar2015 

R'OOO 

20 471 

15 817 

4654 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

20 471 

20 471 

Irregular expenditure is as a result of assets that are deemed donated as the risk and rewards of ownership have passed. 

The entity did not obtain prior approval from the legislature to make such donations as disclosed in note 12. 

14.2 GOING CONCERN 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis 

of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The 

entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at 

least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds 

15 TRANSFER AND SUBSIDIES PAID 

will be available to finance future operations and that the 

realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 

obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary 

course of business. 

The trading entity has paid a subsidy to the Dinokeng Management association, in line with the requirements of Section 

38 (1) (j) of the PFMA. 

Subsidy paid in cash 

Transfers in the form of asset 

Total 

31 Mar 2015 

R'OOO 

4 031 

4 031 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

3 6 00 

4 654 

8 254 
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16 CHANGE IN ESTIMATE 

During the year the following changes were made to the estimations employed in the accounting for assets: 

Change in depreciation/amortisation resulting from reassessment of useful lives. The following categories are affected: 

Computer equipment 116 38 78 

17 PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS 

Donations made 

During the 2012/13 financial year the entity procured buffalo for the Dinokeng Game Reserve, to support it in becoming 

a Big Five game reserve. At this point the entity confirmed with management of the entity that it would be receiving shares 

for this donation as it was aligned to the articles of association of the company. It was noted during the current financial 

year that as the entity does not own land within the reserve it would not be eligible to obtain shares from the Dinokeng 

Game Enterprises. 

This prior period error specifically impacts on the recognition of and expense that was previously treated as an investment 

in associate. 

The retrospective application of the change has had the following impact on the statement of financial position and 

statement of financial performance as presented: 

Effect on 31 March 2013 restated 

Statement of financial position 

Decrease in investment in associate 

Decrease in accumulated surplus 

Statement of financial performance 

Increase in donations made 

Restated 

31 Mar 2014 

R'OOO 

0 

31 Mar 2013 

R'OOO 

(6 762) 

6 762 

0 

6 762 
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Performance information 

Sustainable 
opportunities 
for the 
effective 
participation 
and transfer 
of benefits to 
members of 
the adjacent 
communities 

Visitor 
requirements 
are met 
through 
world-class 
products and 
infrastructure 
provision, 
and unique 
authentic 
experiences 

3 

4 

Number of 
cooperatives 
supported 
non-financially 
in Dinokeng by 
March 2015 

Number of 
hectares 
expanded in the 
DGR by March 
2015 

Number of 
kilometres of 
self-drive routes 
by March 2015 

Development 
of a feasibility 
study for the 
Roodeplaat Dam 
by March 2015 

5 

7 OOOha 

66km 

Feasibility study 

5 

7 OOOha 

66km 

Feasibility 
study 

5 

1 630ha 
incorporated 

66km 

Feasibility 
study not 
completed 

None 

Target missed 
by 5 370ha 

None 

Target 
missed by one 
feasibility study 

f•1• ,,,, � - A -: "J .... ,;,.,;,t .... ,�,.
---;--

::-::-,.,Y,.,,./_-(,>*�:::,:;:;,..:::�:;..
"'

"'-:; ..... .,·" - -"'-."".(, ... , .. �-�-_,c-
-

Strategic go.il 3·, , · " , · . .  .,, ,. · , ., · 

;strengtheri stakeholder'enga9em�n;a,i-tl eoliu;i' ,ttecitive participation in tl\e development of the Dinokeng Project area 
, -�� �- . � ' . ...--

Active 
participation 
and 
involvement 
of all 
stakeholders 
involved and 
interested 
in the 
development 
of the 
Dinokeng 
Project areas 

Number of 
trusts registered 
to facilitate 
community 
develoment 
projects/ 
interventions in 
DGR by March 
2015 

Registration of 
one trust 

Registration of 
one trust 

Trust not 
registered 

Target missed 
by one trust 

None 

To date only 1 630 hectares 
of private land have been 
incorporated as negotiations 
with landowners have, due to 
the finalization of the share 
model. taken longer than 
expected, while there is a 
need to lobby more private 
landowners 

None 

Expression of interest 
IEOIJ results were poor 
and as a result could not 
proceed with the initially 
planned PPP model. An 
EM P was then identified as 
an alternative model, and 
was going to assist with first 
understanding the sensitivity 
of the area. Bids were 
solicited in December 2014. 
A Bid Evaluation Committee 
was held end of January 
2015. Proposals received 
were outside of the available 
budget of R500K. Project 
postponed until 2015/16. 

The process has been 
restarted due to the inability 
to appoint a suitable service 
provider to manage the 
process of registering the 
trust due to the close
tender process resulting 
in proposals coming in at 
higher than budget cost 
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Visitor Number of 206km cleared 206km cleared 206km None None 
requirements 

6 
kilometres of cleared 

are met alien vegetation 
through by March 2015 
world-class 
products and Number of 50 50 51 Target exceeded Project proceeding 
infrastructure people employed by one according to plan. Target 
provision, by the Working was exceeded by one. 
and unique on Fire project Agreement was reached 
authentic in the Dinokeng between the Working 
experiences area by 31 March on Fire project and the 

7 2015 Dinokeng Project to move 
the administrator from 
the Gauteng Department 
of Agriculture and Rural 
Development IGDARDI to 
oversee both GOARD and the 
Dinokeng Project 

Number of 40 40 51 Target exceeded Project proceeding 
people employed by 11 according to plan. The 
by Management target was exceeded by 
of the Dinokeng 11. The DGRMA had to 
Game Reserve appoint additional staff for 

8 Area 31 March security purposes such as 
2015 anti-poaching measures. 

Moreover, more people were 
employed specifically for 
the Self-Drive Route Project 
Phase 1 

Number of 12 12 12 None None 
payments 
towards 
operational 

9 expense support 
against the 
service-level 
agreement with 
the DGRMA 
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6.1 Emplo�ment and uacancies 

6.1.1 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY PROGRAMME: 31 MARCH 2015 

Programme Number of posts Number of Vacancy rate Number of posts 

Office of the CEO 8 

COH WHS 

Fundraising, events and marketing 9 

Research and planning 9 

Finance 8 

Administration 14 

Total COH WHS 56 

Total Dinokeng 56 

posts filled filled additional to 

the establishment 

5 38% 

13% 

8 11% 

6 33% 

5 38% 

5 64% 

36 36% 

36 36% 

Includes the CEO and CFO from the Gauteng Tourism Authority that are providing dual functions to the three entities 

6.1.2 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY SALARY BANDS: 31 MARCH 2015 

Salary band Number of posts Number of Vacancy rate Number of posts 

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 

Skilled !Levels 3-5) 

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 

*COH WHS 

I ' . 

. . 
. 

,�Transversal , . .. - .. .-· . . . , \_ . 

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 

•coH WHS

Senior management (levels 13-16) 

*COH WHS

Total COH WHS 

Total Dlnokeng 

56 

56 

posts filled filled additional to 

the establishment 

62% 

41% 

100% 

36 36% 

36 36% 
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6.1.3 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION: 

31 MARCH 2015 

The organisation does not have any identified critical posts 

6.2 Job eualuation 

6.2.1 JOB EVALUATION: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Salary band Number Number % of posts Posts Posts Posts Posts 

Lower skilled (levels 1-2] 

Skilled 
[levels 3-5] 

Highly skilled production 
[levels 6-Bl 

Highly skilled supervision 
[levels 9-12) 

Senior management 
service band A 

Senior management 
service band B 

Senior management 
service band C 

Senior management 
service band D 

Total COH WHS 

Total Dlnokeng 

of posts of jobs evaluated by upgraded upgraded downgraded downgraded 

15 

39 

5 

3 

56 

56 

evaluated salary bands - number - % of posts - number - % of posts

evaluated evaluated

* No jobs in COH WHS and Dinokeng programme were evaluated during this period

6.2.2 PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES WHOSE SALARY POSITIONS WERE 

UPGRADED DUE TO THEIR POSTS BEING UPGRADED: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 

31 MARCH 2015 

* No posts were upgraded during the reporting period
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6.2.3 EMPLOYEES WHOSE SALARY LEVEL EXCEEDED THE GRADE 

DETERMINATION BY JOB EVALUATION: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupation Number of Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation 
employees 

Chief director 14 15 Retention 

Senior manager 13 14 Retention 

Deputy director 12 13 Retention 

Environment 11 12 Scarcity of skill 

Website copywriting and editing 11 12 Scarcity of skill 

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation: 5 

Percentage of total employment: 8.93% 

6.2.4 PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES WHOSE SALARY LEVEL EXCEEDED THE GRADE 

DETERMINED BY JOB EVALUATION: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total 

Female 

Male 2 2 4 
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6.3 Employment changes 

6.3.1 ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY SALARY BAND: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 

31 MARCH 2015 

Salary band Number of Appointments and Terminations and Turnover rate 

Lower skilled [levels 1-21 

Skilled [levels 3-51 

Highly skilled production [levels 6-81 

•coH WHS

*Transversal

Highly skilled supervision [levels 9-121 

•coH WHS 

*Transversal 
I 

Senior management service band A 

Senior management service band B 

Senior management service band C 

Senior management service band D 

Total COH WHS 

Total Dinokeng 

employees per transfers into the transfers out of 

band as on 1 April department the department 

2014 

4 

2 

36 

36 

-.. ' -, ' ' fr ' • 

"'� "'-" ..,, • • ..... = 
� 

:� ' ' • " 
- > 

I 

Includes the CEO and CFO from the Gauteng Tourism Authority that are providing dual functions to the three entities 

6% 

6.3.2 ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION FOR THE PERIOD 

1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

* Tho n.-n::1nie::1tinn rlnoe nnt h::1\1.0 ::1nu irf.ontifiorl rri+ir�l nnete 
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6.3.3 REASONS WHY STAFF ARE LEAVING THE DEPARTMENT 

Termination type Number % of total 

Death 

Resignation 

Dismissal - operational changes 

Dismissal - misconduct 

Dismissal - inefficiency 

Discharged due to ill health 

Retirement 

Transfers to other public service departments 

Others 

Total number of employees who left as a% of the total employment 

6.3.4 PROMOTIONS BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION 

• The organisation does not have any identified critical posts

6.3.5 PROMOTIONS BY SALARY BAND 

Salary band Employees Promotions Salary band Progressions to Notch 

3% 

3% 

as at 1 to another promotions as a another notch progressions 

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 

Skilled (levels 3-5) 

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 

*COH WHS

. - ' � . � " 

, ' .Q.in��eng :·- , ,, •• _. , :·"'�"·· 

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 

*COH WHS 

• • 

Transversal

Senior management (levels 13 -16) 

*COH WHS 

• • 

Total COH WHS 

Total Dinokeng 

April 2014 salary level % of employees within a salary as a% of 

by salary level level employees by 

salary band 

100% 

- 100% 

-
- 100% 

- 100% 

- 100% 

-

36 30 83% 

36 31 86% 
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6.� Emplo�ment equit�

6.4.1 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING EMPLOYEES WITH 

DISABILITIES) IN EACH OF THE FOLLOWING OCCUPATIONAL 

CATEGORIES AS ON 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupational categories (SASCO) -
MMii&l:Miiii+i411#1M:IM1NiMMMi¥i:MiiM+lii·ll@Mi:MM1NIM• 

Male Female 

Legislators, senior officials and managers 8 

*COH WHS 

I ' 

*Transversal 

Professionals 

*COH WHS

*Transversal 

14 

--------· 
. 

---· 
--------· 

Technicians and associate professionals 13 

*COH WHS 

*Transversal 

Clerks 

*COH WHS 

I ' . ' 

*Transversal 

Service and sales workers 

--------· 
-

--------· 
8 

--------· 
----

--------· 

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 

Craft and related trades workers 

Plant and machine operators and assemblers 

Elementary occupations 

Total COH WHS 13 2 3 10 4 2 36 

Total Dinokeng 11 4 13 2 2 2 36 

Employees with disabilities 

Includes the CEO and CFO from the Gauteng Tourism Authority that are providing dual functions to the three entities 

I 
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6.4.2 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING EMPLOYEES WITH 

DISABILITIES) IN EACH OF THE FOLLOWING OCCUPATIONAL BANDS AS 

AT 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupational bands Male Female -
1Mi¥1:Miiii+i41M@M,MMWN141Mi¥1:Miiii+lii·ll@iil:MMWNIM• 

Top management 

•coH WHS

*Transversal

Senior management 

*COH WHS

*Transversal

Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management 

•coH WHS

*Transversal 

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen and superintendents 

*COH WHS

:qinoken·g :::.::�::-::,�·: ii'·-��?��::,
*Transversal

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision-making

*Transversal

Unskilled and defined decision-making 

Total COH WHS 13 

Total Dinokeng 11 

2 3 9 4 

4 12 2 2 

3 

3 

Includes the CEO and CFO from the Gauteng Tourism Authority that are providing dual functions to the three entities 

2 

6 

15 

12 

8 

36 

36 



Human resources I Tourism Projects Annual Report 2014/15 

6.4.3 RECRUITMENT FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

*No recruitment took place during the reporting period.

6.4.4 PROMOTIONS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

*No promotions took place during the reporting period.

6.4.5 TERMINATIONS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2013 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupational bands Male Female Ill 
IMi&l,P@t+ii;.++1¥@,NMYJN!MIMii&l,Aiiii+iii·IIMM,NhJNIM• 

Top management 

*COH WHS ------ • 

*Transversal --------· 
Senior management 

*COH WHS --------· 

' *Transversal -------· 
Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management 

*COH WHS --------· 
I ' • ' 

*Transversal --------· 
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen and superintendents 

*COH WHS --------· 

*Transversal --------· 
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision-making 

*COH WHS --------· 

*Transversal --------· 
Unskilled and defined decision-making 

Total COH WHS 

Total Dlnokang 

Employees with disabilities 

Total 



Human resources I Tourism Projects Annual Report 2014/15 

6.4.6 DISCIPLINARY ACTION FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

*No disciplinary action took place during the reporting period.

6.4.7 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupational categories [SASCO) Male -
IMii&iriiiM+lli·ll@Ml:MMWN!Mifaii&i:Fiii+@·ll#M:N1M•t11@1!M•• 

Female 

Legislators, senior officials and managers 6 

*COH WHS 

*Dinokeng 

*Transversal

Professionals 14 

*COH WHS

Technicians and associate professionals 13 

*COH WHS

Clerks 8 

*COH WHS

"Dinokeng 

*Transversal

Service and sales workers 

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 

Craft and related trades workers 

Plant and machine operators and assemblers 

Elementary occupations 

Total COH WHS 13 3 10 2 3 34 

Total Dinokeng 11 4 13 2 3 34 

Employees with disabilities 

Excludes the acting CEO and CFO whose skills development is covered through the Gauteng Tourism Authority 
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6.5 Foreign workers 

6.5.1 FOREIGN WORKERS BY SALARY BAND: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

1 Apr 2014 31 Mar 2015 Change 

Salary band Mi•HMMMll·il IIMiMMMMii.;; IIMi&Mi 
Lower skilled [levels 1-21 

Skilled [levels 3-51 

Highly skilled production [levels 6-81 

Highly skilled supervision [levels 9 -121 

Senior management [levels 13-161 

Transversal 

6.5.2 FOREIGN WORKERS BY MAJOR OCCUPATION: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 

31 MARCH 2015 

1 Apr 2014 31 Mar 2015 Change 

Major occupation M·HMM MINMM NIMBI 
Fundraising manager 

Transversal 
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6.6 Leaue utilisation for the period 1 January to 

31 December 21Sll� 

6.6.1 SICK LEAVE: 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Salary band 

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 

Skilled !levels 3-5) 

*Transversal 

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 

•coH WHS 

*Transversal 

Highly skilled supervision 
!levels 9-12) 

•coH WHS 

*Transversal 

Senior management (levels 
13-16) 

*COH WHS 

"Dinokeng 

*Transversal 

Total COH WHS 

Total Oinokeng 

Total 

Total days 

.; . . .,, " 16

42 

163 

% days with 
medical 
certification 

Number of 
employees 
using sick 
leave 

7 

41 

% of total 
employees 
using sick 
leave 

Average days 
per employee 

Estimated 
cost [R'OOO) 
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6.6.2 DISABILITY LEAVE (TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT): 1 JANUARY TO 

31 DECEMBER 2014 

*No disability leave (temporary or permanent) took place during the reporting period.

6.6.3 ANNUAL LEAVE: 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Salary band Total days Average per employee 

Lower skilled (levels 1-2] 

Skilled (levels 3-5] 

*Transversal

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8] 

*COH WHS 

*Transversal 

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12] 

*COH WHS

*Transversal 407 

Senior management (levels 13-16] 

*COH WHS 

•oinokeng 

*Transversal

Total COH WHS 194 

Total Dlnok•ng 181 

Total 1 043 

Excludes the acting CEO and CFO whose leave is managed by the Gauteng Tourism Authority 

7 

7 

41 
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6.6.4 LEAVE PAYOUTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Reason Total amount Number of Average amount 

Leave payouts for 2009/10 due to non-utilisation of leave for the 
previous cycle 

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2009/10 

Current leave payouts on termination of service for 2009/10 

(R'OOO) employees per employee 

R17 081.89 

R17081.89 
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6.7 HIU/RIDS and health promotion programmes 

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement the provisions
contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, 
provide his/her name and position.

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific staff
members to promote the health and well-being of your employees? If so, indicate
the number of employees who are involved in this task and the annual budget that is
available for this purpose.

Yes 

Yes 

The organisation makes use of the 
services of DED in this regard 

The organisation makes use of the 
services of OED in this regard 

L- -J 

3. Has the department introduced an employee assistance or health promotion
programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/service of this 
programme.

4. Has the department established [a) committee[s) as contemplated in Part VI E.5[e)
of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the names of 
the members of the committee and the stakeholder[s) of the programme.

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies and practices to ensure that 
these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If
so, list the employment policies/practices so reviewed.

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

The GSSC has an EAP/wellness 
programme for all personnel of the 
GPG 

The organisation makes use of the 
services of OED in this regard 

HIV/AIDS policy of OED accepted 

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees or those Yes The organisation makes use of the 
services of OED in this regard perceived to be HIV positive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 

measures. 

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo voluntary counselling and 
testing? If so, list the results that you have achieved. 

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor and evaluate 
the impact of its health promotion programme? If so, list these measures/indicators. 

6.8 Labour relations 

Yes This forms part of OED services for 
personnel 

Yes Personnel make use of DED services 
in this regard 

6.8.1 COLLECTIVE AGREEMENTS: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Total collective agreements 

6.8.2 MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS FINALISED: 1 APRIL 2014 

TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Misconduct 

Disciplinary hearings 2014/15 

6.8.3 TYPES OF MISCONDUCT ADDRESSED AT DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS 

Type of misconduct Number % of total 

0 

0 

0 

N/A 0 0% 

I 
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6.8.4 GRIEVANCES LODGED FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Number 

Number of grievances resolved 

Number of grievances not resolved 

Total number of grievances lodged 

6.8.5 DISPUTES LODGED WITH COUNCILS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 

31 MARCH 2015 

Number 

Number of disputes upheld 

Number of disputes dismissed 

Total number of disputes lodged 

6.8.6 STRIKE ACTION FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Number 

Total number of person working days lost 

Total cost [R'OOO) of working days lost 

Amount [R'OOO) recovered as a result of no work, no pay 

6.8.7 PRECAUTIONARY SUSPENSIONS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 

31 MARCH 2015 

Number 

Number of people suspended 

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 

Average number of days suspended 

Cost (R'OOO) of suspensions 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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6.9 Skills deuelopment 

6.9.1 TRAINING NEEDS IDENTIFIED: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

*COH WHS Female 

*COH WHS Male 

*Dinokeng Female 

*Dinokeng Male 

*Transversal Female

*Transversal Male

Professionals 

• 
. 

. 
I 

.. _ , .. 

0 

1 

0 

0 

2 

3 

Technicians and associate professionals 

*COH WHS Female 1 

*COH WHS Male 1 

-

'Dinokeng Female 2 

*Dinokeng Male 1 

*Transversal Female 4 

Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Skills programmes and other short courses 

Corporate governance update 2014 with Prof. Mervyn 
King; business contracts and SLAs 

•:;;;: 
... :

• - -

-

-
- .....

Corporate governance update 2014 with Prof. Mervyn 
King; business contracts and SLAs 

Presentation skills and public speaking; monitoring and 
evaluation; professional writing skills; brand building in 
developing markets; strategic marketing for thinkers; 
high-impact presentations and public speaking 

�l"W""s� • � ,-
- ,, � ' � � 

:·Training�o'"! ro,2,<!�jde d_e,si�ns and software; principles in
monitoring;a.'"!d. �Y.�!�a�!ori'.. � ' · · • "::::: . ., 

Development communication; effective stakeholder 
management; events management 

Strategic marketing management; effective stakeholder 
management; condensed intermediate photography; 
negotiation skills 

The 3-day MBA; mastering leadership and management 
skills 

. rr�ining in roadside design and software: princfp1es·in 
monitoring and evaluation • · • ·

Environmental management and regulation · 

Advanced Excel; people management; financial 
management 

Other forms of 
training 

• 

Integrated 
marketing 
communication 
conference 

Integrated 
marketing 
communication 
conference 



Human resources I Tourism Projects Annual Report 2014/15 

Occupational 
categories -.

I 

Clerks 

*COH WHS 
I 

*COH WHS

*Dinokeng

*Dinokeng 

*Transversal 

*Transversal

I 

Female 

Male 

Female 

Male 

Service and sales workers 

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 

Craft and related trades workers 

Plant and machine operators and assemblers 

Elementary occupations 

Total COH WHS 

Total Dlnokeng 

Employees with disabilities 

1 

0 

5 

1 

Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Skills programmes and other short courses 

Risk management: applying principles: conflict 
and diversity management 

Leadership for Africa's development: managing 
change in dynamic environments; Prince 2 
practitioner's course (projett management] 

Corporate communications; contract 
management; financial management; advanced 
Excel level 2; advanced Excel level 3: logistics 
management; events marketing; stakeholder 
management; PR management; brand 
management and marketing 

Project management; business communication 
and report writing 

Other forms of 
training 

Integrated marketing 
communication 
conference 

6.9.2 TRAINING PROVIDED: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Occupational 
categories 

Number of 
employees as at 
1 April 2014 

Legislators, senior officials and managers 

*COH WHS

*COH WHS

*Dinokeng 

*Dinokeng 

*Transversal 

Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Skills programmes and other short courses 

Corporate governance update 2014 with Prof. 
Mervyn King 

• . 

-

-

-
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Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Occupational 
categories 

Professionals 

•coH WHS

•coH WHS 

•Transversal 

*Transversal 

-

Number of 
employees as at 
1 April 2014 

Technicians and associate professionals 

•coH WHS 

•coH WHS -

•Transversal

' *Transversal 

Clerks 

•coH WHS

*COH WHS

•Transversal

•Transversal

Service and sales workers 

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 

Craft and related trades workers 

Plant and machine operators and assemblers 

Elementary occupations 

Total COH WHS 34 

Total Olnokeng 34 

Employees with disabilities 

Skills programmes and other short courses 

Development communications; effective 
stakeholder manag.ement; events 
management 

Fundraising (basics) autumn school 

Strategic marketing management; effective 
stakeholder management; negotiation skills 

Advanced Excel 

Conflict and diversity management 

Project management; business communication 
and report writing 

6.9.3 INJURY ON DUTY: 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

• . 
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NOTES 

•------
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